
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, July 10th, 2018.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member (absent)



Steven Kessler, Board Member




Robert Foley, Board Member 

Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member

Peter Daly, Board Member 

George Kimmerling, Board Member


ALSO PRESENT:




Michael Cunningham, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney 
 



Michael Preziosi, Deputy Director, DOTS



Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director for Planning


*



*



*
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there are no changes to the agenda this evening so may I have a motion to adopt the minutes of last month?
So moved, seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, I’ll submit a few corrections.

With all in favor saying "aye". 



*



*



*
ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF JUNE 5, 2018 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked the adoption of the minutes, please?
So moved, seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 



*



*



*
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated last month we indicated that we would have a new counsel for this month after we lost the services of John Klarl who had served the board and the town for about 26 years. Tonight we have new attorney. His name is Michael Cunningham and we are very pleased that he has joined the board. He is a new Assistant Town Attorney and a lifelong Town of Cortlandt resident. Michael graduated from Walter Panas high school, thereafter he graduated from Cornell University in the top 10% of his class and the Benjamin N. Cardozo School of Law at Yeshiva University. During his time in law school he was an intern in the town attorney’s office. After law school, he was an associate general counsel for Diamond Company in New York City, an associate attorney for Zarin & Steinmetz. He was recently selected to the 2018 New York Metro Rising Stars list by the super lawyer’s publication for his work as a Land Use and Zoning Attorney. Michael will recuse himself on applications that are represented by Zarin & Steinmetz that pose a conflict. Welcome aboard.

Mr. Michael Cunningham stated thank you.



*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE:

PB 2017-8  a.
Letter dated June 19, 2018 from Joel Greenberg, R.A. requesting the 1st one-year time extension of Site Development Plan approval for the Cortlandt/Peekskill Animal Hospital located at 2158 Crompond Road.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 19-18 in favor of granting the time extension.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

PB 2018-14 b.
Letter dated June 20, 2018 from Bob Eberts, R.A. requesting Planning Board approval for the construction of a mezzanine in the existing Allan Carpet Store located at the Cortlandt Town Center, 3063 E. Main St. (Cortlandt Boulevard).

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have a resolution for you.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we approve Resolution #20-18.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Bob Eberts stated thank you very much for your time tonight.

PB 14-13    c.
Letter dated May 9, 2018 from Manan Joshi, Senior Project Manager of Acadia Realty Trust, requesting Planning Board approval of proposed changes for building Pad D at the Cortlandt Crossing Shopping Center located on Cortlandt Boulevard.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated good evening Madame Chair.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked did you have something to say?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I have nothing to present. I’m just here in case there’s a question. 
Mr. George Kimmerling stated Madame Chair I move that we approve the proposed changes on a voice vote.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated on the question,
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated on the question.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s just approving the specific required requested change from the metal to the EFIS but then in addition, referring it to discussions with the Architectural Review Council because they have some more general concerns, comments about the building.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and the applicant is aware.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we are aware Madame Chair. Thank you Mr. Kehoe.

With all in favor saying "aye". 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you. You got it.

PB 14-13    d.
Letter dated June 25, 2018 from David Steinmetz, Esq. and Brad Schwartz, Esq. requesting Planning Board approval for proposed wall signage and pylon signage for ShopRite and Homesense located at the Cortlandt Crossing Shopping Center on Cortlandt Boulevard.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we approve the ShopRite sign and send the Homesense sign back to the AARC for their approval.
Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated on the question, you’re approving the pylon signs and the ShopRite signs and then the Homesense sign is also incorporated into some modifications to the elevation of the building. Some of that treatment around the sign which the Architectural Advisory Council had some comments on. The applicant has agreed to talk to them about that issue.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated just one word, just so the board is aware, there is some issue of the branding for Homesense. The sign is not just the sign for Homesense. The background of that sign on the face of the building is actually, as we’ve come to learn, we’ve looked at several other Homesense stores in the region. They have the same kind of block background with a lighter color. We understand the concern that AARC wants to discuss it. We’re happy to do that. I just want to make sure your board was aware. We don’t want to lose Homesense and with all of these retailers, the branding of their trademark and their signage is critically important, more so than we may realize, but we will take that issue up through your staff and hope to be back and get this resolved. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it rarely happens, but if you can’t reach any agreement with the AARC you would end up back in front of this board because this board is actually the approving authority, you’re just taking comments from the AARC, but if the AARC and you work on an arrangement where you’re satisfied then I guess it still would come back to you just to say ‘okay’.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I just wanted you to hear that in case we’re back here on August 28th and you ask why we’re back for something that looks very similar if not identical. I can show you three or four stores where that’s their branding.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I appreciate your concern for the signage there but I believe for a very long time that McDonald’s had to have yellow and red not so. I drive around and I go to other towns and go out of state and they’ve got all kinds of things; brown and something else, and brown and yellow, and different colors. I understand what Homesense management would want but if AARC is really dead-set against something there we want to try and work it out. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’m confident we’ll be able to Madame Chair. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m sure, I really am.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you so much. Was there a vote?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re on the question. Does anybody else have anything else to say?

With all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you.



*



*



*
RESOLUTION:

PB 2017-6  a.
Application of Meenan Oil Company, Inc. for Site Development Plan approval for the reconstruction of an existing garage located on an approximately 7.7 acre parcel of property at 26 Bay View Road as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan for Meenan Oil Co.” prepared by Ralph Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated May 16, 2018 and on a 4 page set of elevations and floor plans entitled “Renovations & Alterations to Meenan Oil, L.P” prepared by Philip H. Cerrone, III, AIA dated February 7, 2018.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated good evening. I think the only thing that we really have that is an open item is condition #4 in your resolution. I sent over some information to Chris this afternoon and I guess Michael – the last time we were here, Michael was going to go out and inspect it but I guess he hasn’t had a chance to. So I went today and took a picture of this area and, I don’t know if you want to see it, but in your condition you asked us to restore it according to New York State Erosion Sedimentation Control. It’s not our property. It’s a hard packed gravel and I didn’t see either the condition was a little amorphous. I wasn’t sure who approved this at the end. This is for a Certificate of Occupancy. I asked whether or not you would just simply remove that condition and if you’d like I can show you the pictures if you want to see what the area looks like. Most of you were out on the site walk but it’s basically just a big gravel area and trucks parked on it. It’s very stable but it nothing needs to be done to it. 
Mr. Steven Kessler asked are you saying there’s no disturbed areas based upon your encroachment?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded remember, it’s not our property.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated no, but you were on their property.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated my client’s trucks were parked on that gravel…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that property which does not belong to your client.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated right, so the condition as written was very amorphous. If you read it…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked well did you disturb the area on the property you were not supposed to be on?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded of course we disturbed it, we drove on it. We drove on it.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so this is saying for the area that you disturbed, you should stabilize it.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated it’s stable. Can I show you the pictures Mr. Kessler?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded sure.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is that where you moved the trailers from? So when you moved the trailers it wasn’t disturbed?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked which condition are you speaking of? I thought I heard you say four but that’s…
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated essentially the resolution is fine except for this amorphous condition that we’re required to restore a piece of property that we don’t own. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated staff is recommending that you keep condition 4.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I can’t see why that’s a problem. I don’t see why that’s a problem.

Mr. Peter Daly stated I don’t see it as being all that amorphous myself. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated all it says is if you have disturbed, you should bring it back to its original condition. If you’re saying there’s no real disturbance then why do you care that it’s in there?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded well I’m going to tell you why. Because, your resolution was written months ago and when you put a condition in a resolution and it is amorphous, it is very difficult to understand, it’s subjective, and we’re applying for a Certificate of Occupancy we don’t want there to be any question on whether or not we’re entitled to that Certificate of Occupancy. You read that condition, who approves this?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and we want to make sure the site is stabilized after they’re gone.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated again, if you get our approval, it’s approved. You get a resolution that says everything…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated the condition refers for two years from now for a Certificate of Occupancy. It’s a condition that has to do with a Certificate of Occupancy not your approval.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated the condition is placed in the resolution in the event that Meenan Oil continues to use Metro North’s property without their permission. If any disturbance is caused during the construction or reconstruction of the site and/or garage, the condition is meant to stabilize the site to my satisfaction and to the satisfaction of Metro North. It could be one hundred percent possible that there’s no further encroachment onto that site with no further soil disturbance so it’s not a condition that needs to be removed. As Chris stated, we recommend the resolution be approved as is and move along.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but the condition is not a future condition. It just says right now you want within 90 days you want it checked and determined that it’s okay.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we do not want the property…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated you’re not going to hold it against them two years from now unless…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated they should not be on the property as of today.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated right so this is only for the next 90 days and if you get it done sooner, if you get their approval sooner you’re done.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated you made my point. Mr. Preziosi just said it’s up to him in two years but it doesn’t say that in the condition.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I agree with you, that’s why I’m saying to him, it should not be something in two years from now.

Mr. Tom Wood stated in two years if an inspector goes back and you’re encroaching it’s a violation. This just says within 90 days, remove it. If he does that, this condition, you’re right, is resolved and he moves on with the other conditions.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked should we add a line that says that subject to the approval.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated no, come on.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I do think that he should be able to get out from under it at some point. It shouldn’t be…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated he’s out from under it as soon as he cleans up…

Mr. Tom Wood stated all your conditions in any of your resolutions are cleared, if you will, by staff whatever they are so this is a regular condition. He’s alleged tonight that it’s clear. The photo is just tonight and I know other information was submitted while the town engineer was on vacation last week so I’m sure, take Mr. Mastromonaco to his word that it’s done, that a visit within 90 days is going to clear that condition.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated so I guess I’m just suggesting to add for approval that submitted to the director for approval. Would that help?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated you’re making my point again because there’s no 90 days in here anywhere. I don’t know where the 90 days came from.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it says “within 90 days”.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated it says it, first…

Mr. Tom Wood stated it says within 90 days of the approval.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Ralph may not have the latest version.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated it says within 90 days. If we add for approval are you guys okay with that? 

Mr. Tom Wood stated I think once he reads it I think it’s going to be acceptable to him.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we just want to make sure that anything encroaching on the neighbor’s property has been removed and we’re giving him 90 days to do so.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I understand but I don’t know why we should get tied up in just not saying that he’s submitting it to you guys for approval and then it’s done. I’m not sure what the problem is here. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated neither are we. The condition says within 90 days it’s got to be…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked how do you feel about the condition that…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated the property’s already field-staked. I sent proof of that to Mr. Preziosi. It’s already field-staked. All material and encroachment is removed. Here’s the problem. The problem is that when we’re asked to stabilize somebody else’s property – we’ve removed what needs to be removed, it’s almost like pavement there. How can I go onto the railroad property and stabilize it?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked how were you able to go on it in the first place when you weren’t allowed to go onto it?
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated good point.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated if you’re able to go onto it before without permission why can’t you go onto it now without permission. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco asked is your board asking me to go onto railroad property and stabilize that property?
Mr. Tom Wood stated if that’s what it takes with the railroad’s consent, yes.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated that’s why we don’t want to do it.

Mr. Tom Wood stated but you’re alleging that it’s resolved. That it’s gone.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I don’t think the condition’s necessary. I will tell this board that we have removed the trailers that were on that property. The property is stabilized right now. I gave you pictures. What’s the need for this condition?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated we want them to say that it has been stabilized and that it’s acceptable to them.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated and Mr. Rothfeder, five weeks ago I was here and we were in the same condition. The reason I want this condition removed is because I don’t want to have to chase down staff and ask them to please come out to the property and see if this gravel parking lot is stabilized. This is not fair.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Ralph come on, we need to just move on now. Come on. You don’t have to chase down staff.

Mr. Tom Wood stated but in five weeks, the information was submitted last Thursday.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated and you told me if it was submitted two days before the Planning Board meeting it would be done.

Mr. Tom Wood stated but he was on vacation until Monday. Today’s Thursday.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I’m just saying, you said all it had to do is be submitted two days before…

Mr. Tom Wood stated but I’m just saying you’re trying to allege that after five weeks no one’s gone after and looked but the information, the survey, wasn’t submitted until last Thursday.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated Mr. Wood, just to defend, the idea of having a licensed surveyor stake out that property line was a condition developed after this meeting. It was something that was just added to this…

Mr. Tom Wood stated right, because last month the board was ready to approve the resolution, you declined to have it approved with that condition. The board agreed to adjourn it a month to allow you to take care of the problem. The information that which shows that that’s been remedied was submitted last Thursday.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated and you said two days before the meeting and it was.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s why we suggest that you just adopt the resolution as is and we will work this out.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I really don’t know that there’s a lot of sentiment to change anything here. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked are you suggesting that we adopt tonight?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, and we will work it out.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re going to go ahead and move forward and you’re going to work this out with staff okay?

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 21-18 in favor of this application.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 


*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW):

PB 2018-8  a.
Application of Renato & Doris Capalbi, for the property of John & Patricia Allen, for the renewal of a Special Permit for an existing Accessory Apartment located at 189 Frederick Street.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you can go ahead and introduce yourselves.
Mr. Renato Capalbi stated I’m Renato. This is my wife Doris and we’re just looking to extend, to renew the permit that was there already.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked just for the record, you are now the outright owner of the property. When we started, the Allen’s still owned it but you’ve closed on the property now correct?

Ms. Doris Capalbi responded we closed on the 25th yes, of June.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’ve applied for this renewal prior to tonight. We did prepare a resolution for you and it’s an approving resolution.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but it’s a public hearing.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m sorry. Is there anybody here who is objecting to the assignment here; special permit for this accessory apartment? I don’t think there’s anybody here who objects.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion to close the public hearing.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we approve Resolution #22-18.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just on the question, you’ll get a copy of the resolution mailed to you. There is a declaration that you need to complete and work with our attorney that gets filed that explains you became aware of that a special permit for the accessory apartment expires at the time of property transfer and there’s a declaration that needs to be filed, but you’ll get the resolution then keep in touch with my office and we’ll meet that condition.

Mr. stated we’ll draft it. I’ll be in touch with you for some extra information that I need.

With all in favor saying "aye". 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated good luck.
PB 2018-1  b.
Application of Sustainable Materials Management, Inc. for Site Development Plan approval and for Tree Removal and Steep Slope Permits for an organic composting facility to be located on a portion of property currently occupied by CRP Sanitation located at 2 Bayview Road as shown on a 5 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated May 23, 2018.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated good evening.

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated good evening Madame Chair, members of the board. I’m Jim Annichiarico with Cronin Engineering. We’ve been before you for a few months. The last submission that we made I think addressed most of the comments from staff. I did receive a letter back from Martin Rogers who had a few minor things to wrap up just on some dimensions on the plans from the backs of the bins to the property line and for the fire lane widths. I worked out with Town Engineer, Mike Preziosi the issue of the bollards that came up at the site walk. I gave Mike a sketch showing him where we would put the bollards, the detail of the bollards and he was in agreement with that. I’ll be happy to answer any questions, let the public speak, but we believe we are about ready for approval.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing and if there’s anyone here who wants to make a comment either for or against this particular application is your time now to come up to the podium. Give us your name and address and make your comment.

Ms. Elisa Zazarelli introduced herself and stated I live on Hastings-on-Hudson. I’ve been there for the last ten years and for most of those ten years I’ve been involved in resource management of what we call waste. Composting is true recycling. It beats plastic, metal. You compost an apple core it will come back as soil. You’ll plant another apple tree in it. You’ll keep it composting. We need robust composting in Westchester County. Currently, there are, through the great example of Scarsdale, in Hastings now, and in Greenberg, we’re collecting food scraps. These are drop sites and now trucks come and pick them up and they travel 90 miles to a compost facility in Ulster. We need Westchester County to have a compost facility. I implore you to get past whatever ick or smell you have about composting and say yes to this resolution. I’ve worked with Braden. You’re in great hands. I trust his judgment and who he’s partnered up with. The excitement of people coming to drop their food scraps cannot be believed, the smile on their faces. This is win, win, win, win, win. So please pass this. Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anyone else who has something to say?

Ms. Michelle Sterling introduced herself and stated I live in Scarsdale. I’m on the Conservation Advisory Council there and I’m a volunteer. I’m co-founder of the Scarsdale Food Scrap Recycling Program. What we have in Scarsdale is we started out in the beginning of 2017 with a drop spot as Elise mentioned so residents can collect their food scraps at home, bring them to a drop spot. It’s been very popular and its spread now to 10 other towns. How does that sort of tie into you guys what’s happening in these other towns? There’s two major ways. One way is that how what you guys could do can affect positively the community at large. This is more than just deciding on just like a little piece of land usage. This is really an impactful decision that can positively impact, and you guys would be a leader in our county in terms of what you’re doing to help our environment. What we all of our conservationist, what we’re trying to do really as a rule, we’re trying to do what’s called closing the loop so everything that we use in our life whether it’s food or the cotton we wear or the metal on our jewelry, those are resources that we pull from the earth and only if we put those resources back do we live in what’s called a closed loop. And we need to all live in a closed loop to sustain everything we have here. So you guys really have a great decision before you and you can make a very positive impact on the community at large. Obviously for that reason, we do ask you to make this decision and approve of it. For you guys in it of itself, for this town, you could also be getting, along with this site, your own built-in drop spots. You guys would basically leap frog all of the other towns where we had to go to our towns and say “can you carve out a piece of your recycling center” or “can you put this here and how are we going to site it?” Cortlandt, with this decision, can leap frog it for all their residents. All their residents right now would have a local spot. They’re literally closing the loop within their own town, bringing it right here and theoretically creating it right here, closing the loop right locally. So you guys have a great opportunity to do that. And I can also thirdly speak in terms of the local impact from somebody who’s been just grassroots trying to getting people signed up for this. People love this program. It feels right. It’s what we call the original recycling. When leaves fall in the forest, nobody’s blowing them, they’re composting. That’s recycling right there and this is what we’re doing in all these town here in Westchester County and you guys now have an opportunity to do that here with this site. We also hope for that reason that you’ll pass this resolution tonight. Thanks for considering it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

Ms. Anne Jaffy Holmes introduced herself and stated I live in Irvington and I work for the Federated Conservationists of Westchester County. The Federated Conservationists of Westchester County’s been with our member organizations and individuals to promote composting in backyards and also to promote the larger efforts at composting municipally and school districts that were led by Scarsdale in recent years. The response of the public to this is astounding and that is because it makes sense. It makes C-E-N-T-S, cents as well as common sense. It’s the way nature operates. Up to 17% of the waste stream in Westchester is food waste and yard organics. Seventeen percent is going to an incinerator right now to be burned. It’s 17% of the waste that’s heavy and wet. It does not help the burnery in our waste to energy plant. I was told at the wheelabrator when I was there with the technicians that they would prefer to have food waste taken out of the waste stream to increase the burn rate in the incinerator. Taking out for a higher use, that is to turn it back into soil, and improve our environment, and create a premium compost product for sale makes perfect sense. I give Cortlandt a cutting edge ‘A’ and a great appreciation for even considering this because this is the future and the rule of government and Planning Boards is to plan not just for the present but for capacities of the future. San Francisco, Portland, Oregon, Austin, Texas, Seattle, Toronto, all of Europe, it’s going. It’s going to take the world. Everyone is going to take their food waste and turn it back into soil. And Cortlandt is leading the way for Westchester. We need you to do this. Scarsdale has maybe 800 pounds coming in per week or something crazy like that and that’s only one municipality. School districts all over Westchester, in Katonah, in Bedford, and Mamaroneck, Rye Brook, Larchmont, the Town of Greenberg, they’re all collecting food scraps and shipping it all the way to Ulster County. How stupid is that, when we can do it here and reclaim that value for our own communities. I thank you for entertaining and considering this very carefully and I really urge you, with the most that I have, to take this great step, not just for the Town of Cortlandt and your own residents but for all of Westchester County and for the region. Thank you very much for your time.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you. If you have something to say, you may come up.

Ms. Rose Rawling introduced herself and stated Cortlandt Manor. I guess the first thing that I’m kind of a little bit concerned about. I lived in Switzerland for a short time where they had this type of program and I guess my first question is, this is a very large area, what will happen with this plant if it becomes overwhelmed with the amount of waste? Will it contribute to a rat problem? Will we have an insect issue because they can’t handle the amount that’s coming in? The other thing is, is a lot of times what happens with these recycling programs is things end up in landfill anyway because they can’t be reused. So I’m just wondering, I’m actually asking the folks directly what your ideas are in how to handle these concerns?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated those questions are addressed to the board and the applicant. 

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated the DEC oversees our entire application. They reviewed an application that we had to submit to the DEC. Joanne Wiley is our, I think you may have met her at the first meeting, she handled the entire application to the DEC. We are restricted. We are capped at a certain amount. We can’t just continue to bring in materials and not be able to process them. There is a cap, and there is a limit to everything we can do. It’s inspected on a basis, I don’t know if it’s monthly or not, Joanne maybe can answer that probably but there are many things in place to oversee the operation by the DEC.
Ms. Joanne Wiley stated I remember being here before. Your questions and concerns are excellent. In November of 2017, the entire regulatory basis for the DEC was revised and the registration for such a facility had a significant lift to be able to produce and control the material that moves through the facility. It takes food waste. It takes tree debris waste, combines them so that ultimately in a protected environment you will have a safe product. To that end, there’s a chain of custody that has to be done. There’s a regulatory performance on a daily basis. The material is placed in a container that has a concrete floor. Frequently vectors may drift into these places which are dirt, dirt-based, wide open. These things are controlled very, very specifically. The vectors are controlled. The amount of material coming in is controlled on a daily basis. Rejected loads are a part of this. Residuals controlled this way, and the DEC has an unlimited access to the facility without pre-appointment. They will come at any time, come in and say hello, see how you’re doing. The operator has a very high standard of responsibility on any complaints, responding to complaints. But I think this is very good. By the way, the state of New York in 2021 has a mandate that, I believe it’s 20% of the municipal waste stream has to be reduced by taking the food waste out and food waste, since it’s segregate a waste stream, has to have places to go. The DEC recognizes that there’s a lack of designated segregated waste stream facilities, and this facility is cutting edge. It’s the first one under the new regs. If you had the opportunity to see the significant operation’s manual and daily reporting that is required by these people. I think your questions are excellent. I think we all have to recognize that we all have to respond to the least amongst us. So if there’s a facility that someone has seen in the past that was perhaps not operating correctly, I would say to you it wasn’t a compost facility regulated by the DEC with a specific period of time or specific limit on acceptance and it’s highly regulated. I hope that answers some of your questions.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked what’s the facility capped at for the total amount?

Ms. Joanne Wiley responded the facility is capped at 5,000 cubic yards for a twelve-month period with an 800 cubic yard high point per month. That’s in recognizing seasonal variability. Also, the facility has stop gaps. In other words, if there’s a shortage of a bulking agent, then food waste cannot be brought in. If the food waste processing and the composting bins is full then it cannot accept any more. It’s not free for all running in. Besides which every load that comes in has to be inspected in a very specific area that has a pad made up of bulking agent. And what does that do? When the food waste comes out, it goes onto the bulking agent pad. The bulking agent does a few things. It acts as an absorbent if there is something like that. It stabilizes the material and allows it to be controlled and brought into the maturing bin. It doesn’t go anywhere. The interior roadways are specific so trucks will not be carrying material on their tires. They will not be taking it off site. So there’s interior roadways. There’s lines of visibility. There’s a very specific training program to protect staff and protects drivers. It’s a very serious endeavor. It’s not mulch it’s compost and as the compost is becoming mature, it is segregated and is sent out in controlled batches. That chain of custody allows proof for – it’s like the farm. Where did it come from? Did it meet the test? If it doesn’t, it cannot be ready to be sold. It has to go back and start the process over again. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked and could you just state your name for the record again?

Ms. Joanne Wiley responded yes, Joanne Wiley, Wiley Associates.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated just a question on process, when or if the facility reaches its cap, does it close for the day? Or people just show up and it’s shut down? What do they do? They go home and bring their scraps with them?

Ms. Joanne Wiley responded there’s two areas. There’s a small area to the front of the property which is segregated from commercial traffic. It’s only for residential drop off and delivery. There are say 90 gallon totters, most of us are familiar with that. They’re labeled. They’re covered. The area’s cleaned twice a day. So suppose a person comes forward, has their material in their container, food waste, it goes into that holding container. They cannot get out of their car and run around. Children cannot be running around. Dogs cannot be running around. It’s a very specific designated area and they go there, place that in. So we trail that. Those containers are emptied every day, brought back to the processing area where the commercial vehicles are. The commercial vehicles and the residential folks bringing things in don’t cross, totally separate. If the facility should reach its limit, the facility would close and it would allow people to be notified. We would have that set up. But it’s a very slow process to do this. If you imagine 500 yards in a month, let’s just think it through. So we say 100 yards a week, maybe a little more, let’s take it by 5 ½ days. So maybe it’s 12 to 20 yards, depending on the day. If a vehicle comes in, there might be two to three vehicles in a day. Then the material comes on site and it’s stable. It has to mature. It may take 45 to 50 days with daily testing of temperature. There are probes that go into each bin that is sealed, checks for temperature. If it’s too hot, it has to be cooled down. You’re looking for interstitial spacing to make sure that the whole pile in that bin matures correctly, then once it reaches that and you have to track the numbers of days and when it hits temperature, there’s a particular temperature it has to hit for three consecutive days, I believe it’s 131 degrees, but then it’s in there longer. And then from that, it’s taken out. It’s brought over to another segregated spot where it cools down and then the material is homogenized basically in process, not with liquid, just in process so that it’s consistent. Then it’s sent out for testing with grab samples, and then from there if it comes back, it’s added to the product that’s available to sell. That’s basically it. It’s very slow. It’s not very dramatic but that’s a good thing. That’s a very good thing because when things are slow like that it’s very easy to interact and address anything that you observe that may need to be changed or corrected. And when one bin is full, the next bin is already ready to start accepting. That means you have bulking agent ready. You have the piping ready. Everything’s ready and then you can start adding to that. It’s very methodical. All these records are maintained every day. It’s a 24 hour window of compliance.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I have a question. I think George and I were thinking similarly. I am always concerned about how people behave in terms of their responsibilities especially to something like this. You have explained the processing of this, how it works. If a resident comes with material that he or she has collected for a week or whatever and they decide that they, and especially if they’re coming outside of Cortlandt, I don’t really want to go home with this and my car with this again. What if they step out and place the materials alongside whatever bin it is that they’re supposed to put it in? What are you going to do? 

Ms. Joanne Wiley responded I think that’s a very good point. We’ve all seen intended and unintended residue on the ground around containers. Think about a park. You go to a park and you’re going to put your stuff in a bin and you know it that many people use it it’s on the ground. And then bees, and vectors, and who knows what; sloppy, nasty, not good. To take care of that, there will be more than one totter there. There will also be a totter there for non-food waste. Somebody gets out of their car, they’re like wait a minute, I’ve got a bag of food waste but I also have a couple of bottles from the garbage and I want to do this. What do I do with it? Instead of throwing it on the ground, there will be a labeled totter there saying “not food waste” so it will go in there too. These containers are highly visible. They’re cleaned. They’re taken out every day. Everything is done to eliminate the accidental debris or placed there because someone is busy and not sure what to do, but it will clearly be labeled, clearly designated. We’ve done everything we can to offset that and there’s a walk-around frequently during the day. If someone drops it down, you missed it, there’d be no more than a few hours before someone’s going to be walking by again. Remember, this is an area where people have to have access to. It has to be kept clean. Think of snow. Think of rain. Think of ice. The facility has to be open so we don’t want to find a ketchup bottle buried under five inches of snow right. It’s everybody’s nightmare. We’re as happy as everyone else to have a very clean place to be proud of and as the first one through the new regulations we want to set the tone very high. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the majority of the operation is large scale garbage truck type operation, isn’t it, compared to the residential use. What are the differences in percentages?

Ms. Joanne Wiley responded it’s estimated that 95% of the material coming in would be from commercial routing. But think about this, because the average person might bring in a one gallon or half a gallon of material so to fill up a 90 gallon container, you’d have to have many people coming in to fill that up. I think the psychological impact is as important to know that the facility is available to accept this material as people become more responsive and know it’s easy, they will bring the material in, but to your question, the vast majority of the yardage will be coming in from commercial transport.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I have a question and a concern along the same lines as George and Loretta brought up. I think at the site visit we asked the gentleman, I forgot his first name, who’s proposing this. The protocol and the control. In other words, if you reach capacity and you shut the gates, so-to-speak, is there going to be a monitor there? Do trucks now have to turn around? I can’t remember the amount of room that’s between the outer portion of your property. Then there’s a secondary road which is Bayview, and then Bear Mountain Bridge Road is further. It’s not right on the Bear Mountain Bridge Road. No it’s further in. My concern would be the protocol of turning people away if you’ve reached capacity. And second, and let’s hope if this happens it’s successful for the sake of the sustainability of our environment and our area. But if it becomes so successful, to get there, to access it from the Bear Mountain Bridge Road is very tenuous. It’s not a good entrance/exit. There are other industrial enterprises there and there may have to eventually  be future control at that intersection. I think it’s an admirable enterprise, kind of an iffy location. I applaud all the comments from Rye and Greenberg and all the letters. We’re all familiar with the area up here. I’m not sure how many of you have visited the potential site but that would be my major concern. I think the idea is great. If it happens, I wish it success but I would hope that there’s a good protocol to follow and a good safe entrance/exit.
Ms. Joanne Wiley stated I can’t comment on a regulated road, regulated by municipal or county. I can’t comment on that around traffic but I can say that when you look at the facility coming through the commercial gate for example, I think we estimated that it could have 30 vehicles inside waiting. That is an impossibility because that much material coming in would necessitate 2 ½ times of bulking agent which necessitates 40% more in rough tree debris. When you look at a hundred yards of bulking agent, by the time you get to that you would have been managing your facility to look ahead as to space and control and to call your customers. That would be a very first thing would be to make sure that you modulate that.

Mr. Robert Foley stated if there’s a build-up of the big commercial trucks mixed in with some of the residential cars or SUVs and their compost…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you remember from the site inspection, they’re totally separate entrances. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated they’re separate but – what I’m worrying about is the protocol and the safety. If you know that that facility has to be closed within an hour because it’s reaching capacity, is someone monitoring that and then going back on the truck line or the car line saying, you’ve got to turn around and go home and come back another day.

Ms. Joanne Wiley stated the amount of material on site and traffic is not discovered every morning. This is a continuous flow and management of materials. As the material is coming in, both tree debris and food waste. Every day, at the end of the day, and ever morning there is a tracking of the cubic yards that’s coming in. In other words, it’s not a surprise. We would know the material that’s coming in. I would like you to help me on what you’re asking.

Mr. Robert Foley asked in other words, on any given Saturday, if all of a sudden you not only have the commercial trucks and a lot of residents decide to go either their food scraps – I know they’re separate areas in the site. In the protocol, do you have a person on site that would realize at some point there’s too many trucks backed up? There’s no way that their material is going to fit? We have to turn them around now. That’s all I’m asking. Or are they going to sit there with their engines idling…

Ms. Joanne Wiley responded in the operation’s manual, there’s no public staging of vehicles, absolutely none. The vehicles have to come in and then proceed on the designated roadway to the interior of the property which is clearly identified and then they can wait inside but they cannot wait outside. As far as, there are personnel outside all the time doing traffic managing. People will see the front. There’s parking for several cars in the front.

Mr. Robert Foley asked when they’re inside if a person on site, a staff person realizes you’re at capacity or about to be, they could direct whatever’s lined up that’s not going to make it to turn around within the site and come back another day. That’s all I’m asking.
Ms. Joanne Wiley responded they absolutely could. If in the very unlikely circumstance that the operators did not observe during the month the volume requirement which is 500 and seasonal 800 and didn’t recognize that for example, and then all of a sudden we’re surprised to see this, they would have the vehicles inside, turn the vehicles around and that would be recorded as a returned load and they could come back another day or they could go to Ulster or someplace else.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anyone else on the board or in the audience who wants to speak at this point?

Ms. Karen Core introduced herself and stated I’m a lead volunteer in food waste recycling from the town of Mamaroneck. I just want to echo what has been said from Irvington, from Hastings, from Scarsdale that this proposal they are looking at really has implications, obviously beyond the Town of Cortlandt and it has obviously excited a lot of people in other municipalities in Westchester County. Just to let you know that Town of Mamaroneck and Village of Larchmont, the two municipalities that I’ve been working with since June last year in planning and implementing our food waste recycling program. We started our voluntary food waste recycling program in September 2017 following the footsteps of Scarsdale and it has been amazing how the program has grown, how it has been enthusiastically embraced. It’s really more than just food waste that really is involved because when you integrate food waste recycling, you really assessing and improving your own recycling practices and that’s what we’ve discovered in Mamaroneck and Larchmont, that people you really increase a whole awareness of proper waste disposal and making sure that the closing of the loop. I really want to also echo to support the Town of Cortlandt in your proposal of this facility because it really has – we’re all excited about it because we really want to enable the ease and widespread adoption of food waste recycling and composting and making it a way of a life just like it is in California, in Oregon, and Washington. And Westchester County, we are known – our recycling statistics are way above the average in New York State and above national average. I think all of our residents here from other towns that have been doing food waste recycling, I think we’re a typical probably of other Westchester County residents like in the Town of Cortlandt. I think what you are doing is basically in line with our values and our commitment in environmentally sustainable practices. I just want to echo the support and I commend you in taking the leadership on this. Thank you.

Ms. Elizabeth Peters introduced herself and stated I live in Cortlandt Manor. I did not plan on speaking on this, however I have listened to everything that everyone has said. I have been composting individually myself for over 25 years. I feel it’s an extremely important thing for all of us and the public to embrace for our wildlife, our nature, our landfills. It is something that I think you should grab this opportunity. It excites me very much to hear that this might even be happening. Thirty years ago I had this idea in my head, I lived in Brooklyn at the time, that it would be so wonderful to have composting on every block in New York City so that people could walk down the street and actually have a place for that material to go and feed our parks, and our forests, etc, to make really good natural and rich soil to enrich our communities. I don’t think there should be any hesitation on your part and I thank you for considering it, but as just an individual I haven’t really heard anybody that’s just an individual. I think composting is the greatest thing ever and it can really change the face of our garbage. So thank you.

Ms. Jessica Shule introduced herself and stated I live in Cortlandt Manor. I’m just a resident and I think this is a fantastic idea. I think that it would be helpful for everything involved with this process, like she was saying about the compost that people can use in their own gardens, and in the parks. So I’m just a normal human person living in Cortlandt Manor saying go, go, go. I am a hundred percent in support of this idea. So thank you.

Ms. Helen Mura introduced herself and stated I actually live in the Village of Pleasantville. I’m chair of the CAC. I’m the Recycling Commission and I’m also a co-chair of the Zero Waste at the Pleasantville Music Festival which is this coming Saturday which is similar to Clear Water but a lot smaller and not on the Hudson. We have been separating food waste from recycling and trash at the music festival for, this is the eighth year. We’ve really reduced the amount of trash that gets taken up to Charles Point. We’ve done that mostly by removing the food waste. We’ve been working with different carters, one is Suburban and now CRP. I was just so thrilled to hear that there would be somewhere in Westchester to take the food waste because the trucking of that waste to Ulster is a big waste of diesel or whatever and an environmental footprint that we should be trying to reduce. So I really commend Cortlandt for considering this proposal. I think it’s fantastic. Pleasantville has been talking to Scarsdale and other towns about the food waste drop offs and they’re on the cusp of going forward and having a drop off program. I think this will tip the balance. Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked did you want to speak?

Ms. Leola introduced herself and stated from Irvington, New York. I served on the Greenberg committee for the Food Scrap Program and also on the Irvington/Greenberg Policy Task Force. Do you guys know what grade we get in Westchester for air quality? Happens to be an ‘F’ and several years running. One of the problems is our Charles Point garbage burning facility. So if we divert 17% of our garbage out and turn it into the earth which is not polluting to burn, we’ll be much better off. Elizabeth, I commend you for your backyard composting and I have family, I grew up in the area also and as my family around we all, in Yorktown and Putnam Valley, backyard composting is the first thing, the best thing that people should do but this facility though gives us so much more value because not everyone can do backyard composting and it takes everything like the bones and all the other living matter that you can’t backyard compost. It really provides an incredible service to our community and I think the statement about Cortlandt having this golden opportunity to really do the right thing for the future to benefit our community is really worth your consideration and I appreciate your doing that. I could also reiterate that the interest is absolutely heartwarming because when we put this program out I thought, are people really going to sort their food scraps, and Anne and I from Irvington began to collect at the farmer’s market. We thought we’d do this nice service for the community, get the word out about food scraps and it turned out it got so big, our residents were so interested that we literally, our individual cars became garbage barges. It’s absolutely heartwarming how many people understand the value of this. So your residents will participate the entire county for this. This is an incredible opportunity. And it’s not sustainable that we truck them to Ulster County. So it would be just absolutely wonderful to have it right here in our county. Thanks for your consideration.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you. We’re all done? I don’t see anyone else.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I just want to say, I don’t think you have to sell us on the theory and the great idea of this and the success of it in other areas, as many of us already separate. I do for 48 years since I’ve been in Cortlandt, separate the kitchen and the regular garbage. Four of our members that I could count, at least four have come from either the Conservation Advisory Committee in our town or from an environmental group. So we’re very familiar with the theory and the great idea, it’s very admirable. But again, I still have a concern and I’m sure it could be worked out with town and I guess the DOT runs the Bear Mountain Bridge Road? Is that a state road?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded it’s a state road.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so if it is a very successful enterprise and gets very busy then there may be unintended consequences with traffic problems and other things and that would be my concern because as a board one of our charges is to look at the public safety, health and welfare to the public. Safety, of getting in there that would be my concern.
Mr. Tom Wood stated I think I should also point out to the board that when this application first started it wasn’t a permitted use in the town. The Town Board took it up, held public hearings and amended the zoning ordinance to allow it in this specific M-1 zone. So I think Mr. Foley just some of your concerns, the regular regulations of the industrial zone which this is in, it’s our heaviest industrial area are all of those other regulations are in effect and they would provide, I think, a lot of the safety precautions and concerns that you have. So obviously the Town Board by amending the zoning ordinance to enable this has fully embraced and endorsed this concept as should be a permitted use as-of-right in our industrial zone.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t see anyone else who appears to want to say something. I do think though, like Bob that we’re certainly in the mood to, or in the mode I should say to approve of this facility but we do have, some of us, certain concerns and one like Bob: safety. For me it’s who monitors this site and how they monitor it so they don’t have people just sort of leaving scraps around and they don’t get attended to quickly. That’s very, very important. We are not trying to encourage a vermin problem and of course this facility is located near a critical environmental area anyway. We’re trying to do the right thing here in Cortlandt but at the same time we don’t want to encourage the kinds of situations that become a problem for us. I would like to see that there would be some conditions in your resolution that would allow for monitoring outside of your agency and sort of have the town here and there to sort of spot check things and make sure that things are going the way they should be.

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated we would not have a problem with that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and I would want them to be – you don’t need anything else to do?

Mr. Jim Annichiarico responded Mike read the manual from the DEC.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated the manual from the DEC is fairly robust. As Chris and I were just whispering to one another, there was a monitoring protocol put in place for a different type of facility but of a similar concern; Brookfield off of Route 9A so we could ask and put in the resolution for have a yearly monitoring reports and correspondence back-and-forth from the DEC requiring to be submitted to the town. And also if, I don’t want to belabor the public meeting much further but if Jim and the owner could possibly talk to how you propose to bring waste to the site. It’s our understanding it’s coming from your own trucks so it will be highly managed so you won’t have a high percent load from random trucks coming to the site, just a small percentage from residential home owners, etc. If you can elaborate a little bit on that I think you could address some of the concerns being raised about traffic and circulation around the Annsville Circle and the Route 6 corridor.

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated I think like Joanne said, I think Bob envisions maybe trucks. We do have a fairly – the composting facility is in deep into the site. So we do have a fairly long queuing area before you actually get into the site itself. I think Bob’s maybe thinking that, you know, what’s to stop trucks from going down Roa Hook all the way back to the Bear Mountain Road? That’s quite a long stretch there as well. I don’t think – as Joanne mentioned, if we had trucks backed up to that road we wouldn’t be able to accept them at all.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I don’t anticipate backed up to Bear Mountain Bridge Road, but I just, with the protocol and the monitoring, the control, at what point do you start turning trucks around within your site or on Bayview to say, it can’t happen today. Come back. We’ve all been to the site. We did a thorough site visit. If you read the minutes you see all the things we’ve asked about. My concern would be, we all want it to be a success. We want people to come and use it but if it gets to the point where…
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we would regulate that in the language of the protocol that would be attached to the approving resolution. But along those lines, we don’t have an approving resolution for tonight. There are some outstanding referrals that we still need to hear back from. Our arborist still needs to give us a report on the trees. I have Mr. Carbone and Mr. Annichiarico know that there’s not a resolution for this evening, and also we’d like the public hearing adjourned just in case those outside agencies have any comments that need to be put in the record but we did think that you can adjourn the hearing and if you’re so inclined direct staff to have a resolution for the next meeting.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated Madame Chair if I might move that we adjourn the public hearing until the next meeting on August 28th and in the meantime direct staff to create that resolution.

Seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and on the question, with all the conditions, all the issues we’ve brought up.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked does anybody else have anything on the question piece?

With all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated thank you very much.


*



*



*
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have a pretty heavy agenda. I still have two pages, at least a page and a half to do so if you are planning on leaving you might want to go at this point so that…

PB 4-14      c.
Application of Mongoose Inc. for the property of Mongoose Inc., Commercial Real Estate Asset Management Inc., and JPG Cortlandt Inc., for Preliminary Plat approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal permits for a 3 lot subdivision of an approximately 26 acre parcel of property located on the south side of Maple Avenue and on the east side of Dickerson Road and Hilltop Drive as shown on a 8 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision of Abee Rose Situate in the Town of Cortlandt, Westchester County, NY” prepared by Badey & Watson Surveying and Engineering PC, latest revision dated June 28, 2018.

Mr. Frederick Wells stated good evening. Frederick Wells, Tim Miller Associates. I prepared a brief summary of the plan if you’d like to me to go through it before the public speaks.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay, very good. I think that would be helpful.

Mr. Frederick Wells stated as the board is well aware, this project site has been before the board for a number of years. It started off with an application in 2014 for 5 lots. Since then we’ve worked with staff, worked with the board and the plan has been modified somewhat and the scope of the project has been reduced. I guess what I’ll do first is describe the graphic that’s up on the board. It’s an aerial photograph that shows on the left hand side the Dickerson Road development, subdivision and on the right where the green area is is the disturbed area proposed for Abee Rose which is 3 lots. As you can see, there’s with yellow arrows there’s on three sides of all this development is open woodland, forest that would remain as forest both on our property and on Dickerson Mountain which is behind the Dickerson Road and Hilltop Lane. As you can see, unfortunately the text is not too well readable but Dickerson Road development covers 28, 29 acres or so of developed area, whereas the proposal we have for you for 3 lots is about 8 ½ acres of disturbed area. That’s the relationship we tried to show in this graphic. Maybe you can switch to the illustrative plan and I’ll just briefly describe what we have. The town took ownership of 104 acres of the property last year and will become open space. It includes the lake on the right hand side of the graphic and all the hashed area. That would permanently remove that 104 acres from a development potential and preserve the wildlife habitats there. The 2014 application for 5 single lots, as I said, was reduced to 3 lots, 3 large lots on the remaining 25 acre portion of the site which is clustered on one side of the site with access only from Hilltop Drive and Hilltop Lane. As I say, the amount of disturbance is 8.25 acres proposed on this site which is 6%, approximately of the 129 acres of the whole site. No trees are proposed to be cut other than for the roads for the septic systems and for the house sites. A survey was done of all the trees around the developed area. The town arborist flagged the trees and created a survey. We estimate there are over 16,000 trees on the entire parcel. The arborist identified, of the 3,000 trees that were surveyed, there were 6 he described as specimen trees and of those 3 would be removed for the road construction but all the other specimen trees would be preserved. The proposed lots, as I say, would be accessed from Hilltop Drive with a paved private road narrow to 20 feet wide in order to reduce the impervious surface. The road will be maintained by the three lot owners and no development is proposed to be accessed off of Maple Avenue. The house site septic areas and private road turnaround are sited in the gentlest areas in terms of slope on the site. The retaining walls are also proposed on lining the roads and the driveways primarily to reduce the amount of grading needed and the amount of tree clearing needed. The soil areas have been tested, witnessed by the Health Department to develop the designs for the septic systems for each lot, obviously has its own septic system. There’s a temporary construction road that will be built for access to lots 1 and 2 septic areas. That road would then be greened up after the construction. The wetland impact has been reduced in this plan to 933 square feet which is a small pocket isolated wetland roughly in the center of the road comes in from Hilltop Drive. Buffer disturbance has been reduced to 2,560 square feet just for the road access. To deter future wetland encroachment from the lots there’ll be visible markers placed along the buffer areas, a 100 foot buffer from the wetlands on the lots. The storm water measurement designs and details will treat run-off based on the current requirements of New York State DEC for water quality. The design includes barrier retention and rain gardens to try to induce infiltration of water, and additionally the run-off quantity at the property line will not increase. All these mitigation measures are intended to reduce the impacts of the project as a whole. Also, here tonight is we can describe a little bit about the engineering that we have in the design.
Ms. Margaret McManus stated good evening. Margaret McManus from Badey & Watson. I know that last time we had spoke about a construction scheduling and staging which Chris if you could pop that up? The dark blue area is the phase that would cover the construction of the common driveway and the fire retention area that is designed to attenuate and treat the water quality volume from the storm water run-off. The additional, the red area is the septic areas for lots 1 and 2 which would be built prior to construction of either house on lot 1 or 2. Then we have the green area, the blue area, and the beige area, those are all three of the house sites. Lot 1 is green. Lot 2 is blue and 3 includes the septic for lot 3. It’s estimated that the road construction would take about six months and a one house could be built at the same time that that construction was happening. The additional houses would take somewhere in – and actually a house will take longer than six months to build but it’s usually six months, maybe outside with another four to six months inside which obviously there’s less noise during that part of the construction. 

Members of the audience asking for Ms. McManus to speak louder.

Ms. Margaret McManus continued it’s estimated that the road construction would take six months and at that time one house could be constructed simultaneously during, when the road is being constructed. So that would also include an additional timeline for the house to be constructed. A typical house takes 10 to 11 months to be constructed. 
Mr. [inaudible].

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated excuse me sir, we have to let her make her presentation. You’ll have your chance.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you’ll have your chance to talk later sir. Let her finish and then we’ll open it up.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated so then the other two houses would take approximately 11 months to construct.

Members of the audience stated [inaudible].

Ms. Margaret McManus responded no.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Margaret, just address the board and then finish your comments.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated we anticipate there would be probably a two year construction cycle for a complete construction. That is if the houses were built in a timely fashion that the applicant had buyers that were interested. What we know is that it would take 6 months to build the road. The cut and fill on the site is even. We do not need to bring in fill or take soil off site. There will be truck traffic that will deliver products to the site such as catch basins, manholes, asphalt, obviously lumber for the construction and all the materials that would be needed to build a house. The storm water was designed to New York State DEC storm water requirements. There’s an erosion and sediment control plan, it includes good housekeeping such as watering of the site to cut down on dust, that there would be required covers on any trucks that had materials brought to the site. There was question about the septic and the water. The septic, the plan has been resubmitted to the Westchester County Department of Health and is under review and also the water service, there was questionable water pressure. That has been addressed with the installation and a booster pump station. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so the DOH is not signed off on the septic locations yet?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded they have witnessed all the soil testing and we meet all the requirements but the DOH cannot approve it until you approve a preliminary approval obviously, but it has been resubmitted. We’ve addressed all of their questions and their package was resubmitted. I think we’ve covered everything. I did speak about the water supply that there would be a booster pump station installed and there will not be – there actually will be an alleviation of existing water low water pressure conditions at the top of Dickerson Pond Road and Hilltop Drive.
Mr. George Kimmerling stated just a question on the, I guess the phasing we’re calling it, so the road construction obviously would need to happen first, I think you said that.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated yes, the common drive…

Mr. George Kimmerling stated give access to the rest of the sites. Would the road construction get underway before there was necessarily a buyer for any of the houses? I’m thinking the road construction could happen and then things might sit until there was a buyer for a house but the road would have been done and that work would be…

Ms. Margaret McManus responded so I can tell you that I’ve had extensive conversations with the owner and his finance people. They are looking to construct the road and all three houses as soon as possible so we do not think that there will be a long delay, but obviously no one has a crystal ball, but we do know that the road construction would begin right away. As of right, you can build one house. You can’t really build the other houses until the road is in place.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated thank you.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked on the houses you plan on building -- customizing the houses or do you already have a plan design for the three houses you’re planning on building and hoping somebody’s going to buy them?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded the owner does have a type of home that he believes he will buy but they will not be spec homes, they will be houses that would be custom-built to an owner.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think I may have missed something too. Did you give us an average or an estimated time for building a home?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded it takes about 10 to 11 months to build a home but not all of that is obviously outside with hammers and nails. Usually four to six months to get wrapped up tight and then everybody’s inside.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so these would be stick-built, not modulars?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded they are not anticipating modulars.

Mr. Robert Foley stated you couldn’t bring them up the hill, right.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked Margaret did you finish?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded we know that there’s been a lot of talk and concern about the construction traffic and the truck traffic on the road. Driving the site we realized there isn’t even a town-posted speed limit which there isn’t on most roads. I’m sure it’s the town’s speed limit which is 30 miles per hour. We would plan to post a maximum of 20 mile per hour speed limit for all construction vehicles on Dickerson Pond Road with temporary signage during the construction phase.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and there’s no other way a construction road could be brought in from below with the environmental constraints?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded no, there’s wetlands.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked have you completed your…

Ms. Margaret McManus responded yes, I believe we have completed our presentation.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated then we can begin to hear from the public. This is a public hearing. If in fact you have something you’d like to say, please come up to the podium and state your name and your residence. I don’t need to have to call each person. As one person’s finishing up you can just come up, line up and…

Mr. Dan Lowy stated good evening Madame Chairperson and fellow board members. My name is Dan Lowy. I live at 2 Hilltop Drive which is the home closest to the proposed development, a development that’s going to go on for two years of noise and traffic, and debris, and air pollutants for three homes that are going to be built. We are very concerned about the traffic, the construction vehicles going up and down Dickerson. It’s a windy, twisting road. Most of the time the vehicles tend to ride in the middle of the road let alone on the outside. There have been a couple of instances where there’s almost been head-on collisions on the road and now we’re going to have big dump trucks coming up and down the road bringing materials or cut away trees. When the board came out to do the inspection at the site, it was clear to the board, very evident to the board that the grading of the property was a very steep slope that numerous trees, not the amount that was proposed just now but numerous trees would have to be cut down and that there would have to be blasting done. We’re all concerned about our foundations to our homes. We’re all concerned about the water runoff coming down off Dickerson. Frankly, when it rains on my property, there is a large flow of water coming down through a system that has been created. We’re concerned about the wildlife disturbance. We’re concerned about preserving Dickerson Mountain the way it looks now in a very floral and – you get it. We asked the board to consider whether or not it is worth it to have such a two-year long project for three properties for the time that it takes to do that. Anyway. We are concerned that there might be upwards of a 34% loss, lot by lot with the tree total. We are concerned about the drainage. We are concerned about the blasting. We are concerned about the utilities. We are concerned about the water flow, as you mentioned, an additional pump has to be installed for water pressure. I can tell you that in our home we sometimes lose water pressure for an hour or two where we have no water. So we’re concerned about the additional strain. My property, if you look on the map, is the one closest to the beginning of the new road. That house right there is my property. Also, it impacts my driveway. So earlier I heard a conversation take place where it was, “well it’s only one driveway that’s going to be affected.” Well if that was your driveway you wouldn’t be too happy about that would you, because this new road would chop off a portion of my driveway. So with that said, I’ll give my fellow neighbors and home owners a chance to speak but we vehemently oppose the project. Thank you.
Mr. Donald Liebman introduced himself and stated good evening I live on Dickerson Road. I actually live at the bottom of Dickerson Road closest to Furnace Dock. You would think maybe it doesn’t matter to me that much because I’m far away and my views, and my backyard aren’t affect, but in reality, four acres of the property I own is a mapped wetland all the way at the bottom of Dickerson Mountain bordered by Dickerson Road and Furnace Dock Road and there were times when that wetland becomes so incredibly overwhelmed that the water from heavy storms comes up onto the road. And in a moment, I’m going to ask Mr. Kehoe to show a very, very short video, 20 seconds but I think it illustrates something. Because, we appreciate the town’s efforts in protecting the environment in this town as much as it has and really looking out at impacted properties as much as it has. And I’m sure that when the development that makes up Dickerson and Deer Track and Hilltop called Powder Horn was originally built, there were many assurances given and engineering evidence given to say, “don’t worry, there won’t be a problem” but that development was built. Houses were built all the way to the top of the mountain, to what I’m told is a shoulder, a ridge of the mountain including up slope of Hilltop and I think that that mountain has been degraded more than enough already. This video’s only 20 seconds long so please look up because it’s going to come and go real quickly but I think it’s worth looking at and then I’ll tell you what you’re actually looking at. There it is. This is halfway up Dickerson Road in the aftermath of hurricane Floyd in 1999. My four acres of mapped wetland was overwhelmed. Water ended up on the road, on Dickerson, and on Furnace Dock for several days because it couldn’t even drain back into the storm water system because the wetland was so saturated.
Mr. Robert Foley asked and this is at the bottom?

Mr. Donald Leibman responded this is about halfway up Dickerson Road, I’m going to say around 12. There you are. It’s 12. It’s only halfway up the mountain. Thanks Chris. I just want to hit on a couple of points because I know there are a lot of people who also want to speak. As this board knows, there’s an agreement entered into between the town and the developer dated December 28th, 2017. The agreement appears to indicate that there may be some waiver that was agreed to of some of the requirements of the Town of Cortlandt municipal code, especially when it comes to trees in particular. There were really four main areas of law that are impacted here and we think that the developer should be treated no differently than anyone else. So we know that this board is going to apply the same standards to this application that it would apply to every application. That’s of course the steep slopes, the wetlands, storm water pollution and trees. The town code for steep slopes says that, especially when you’re involved with a grade of 30% or more, the applicant has the burden of demonstrating by clear and convincing evidence that they have compelling and exceptional circumstances and that there is no other reasonable use of the site and that they are compelled to disturb slopes having a 30% or greater grade. Not to put too fine a point on it but this is a free country. People make investments, sometimes they make bad investments and it’s not the government’s obligation to help them realize a return on it. They bought with their eyes open. They know what the legal requirements are and they should have to meet them. In the submission for this application there are slopes that exceed 30%, and there’s quite a number, I’d say approximately 5 ½ acres of slope that exceed 15%. They should have to demonstrate that they have no other viable option than to disturb slopes in excess of 30%. Wetlands and storm water, I’ll just comment on briefly together. I told you, and I illustrated what we’re dealing with on that mountain when it comes to the receiving body for a greater amount of the storm water at the base of Dickerson Mountain. They have to not only demonstrate, they have to demonstrate that their storm water pollution plan that they’re going to minimize the impact on the quality of the water. Now I’m not sure that they’ve done that. Someone who’s looked at the plan has told me that all they’ve really done is said, quote: “we’re going to minimize the impact of the quality”. But maybe they should be asked to provide a study that shows what the post development load on the wetland is going to be chemically so that the quality of the wetland water is not degraded below legal standards. And as far as the tree is concerned, I just heard some presentation about how it sounds like there’s three specimen trees but it’s not all about three-specimen trees. There are other requirements in the town code for re-forestation planning and we think that those requirements should be met. If they haven’t done a re-forestation plan they should be required to, and none of the requirements ought to be waived for them. That would establish a very bad precedent. And one other thing that caught our eye was that they say that they’re going to excavate approximately 11,403 cubic yards of rock and soil. That’s enough to cover a football field to a height of almost six feet. That’s a massive amount of disturbance. And speaking of disturbance, they are going to build that temporary hold road which the way we read it, 450 feet distance of the temporary hold road located on lot 1 is going to exceed a 15% and we’re just asking the question as to whether or not they included that steep slope impact in their calculations for the impacts from lot 1. And we would just ask this board to them to the exact same burden of proof that the law requires everyone to be put to and not to feel in any way constrained by any agreement or understanding that may have already been reached with them. Thank you.

Dr. Jonathan Hollander introduced himself and stated I’m a resident here in Cortlandt Manor at the property 2395 Maple Avenue. In fact, if you take a look at the image right there, you would see my house just north, conveniently, in that white section which ignores Maple Avenue. We’re abutting the wetlands. In fact it’s the edge of my property right there. I moved here in this last year with my wife as we were expecting our first child. I moved up from the city. One of the reasons that it was compelling for me to move here was the scenic views as well as the sort of quieter community lifestyle that we’ve come to enjoy now. I can tell you my neighbor’s directly across the street have also purchased in this past year. They have a one-year-old and a three-year-old. I can tell you two doors down from me there’s a new couple that moved in a few months ago. They just got their first baby. I can tell you four houses down from me, there’s another couple that has moved here in the first year with I believe a two-year-old and a four-year-old. Every single one of these families I’ve just mentioned have moved here in the last year. We all have small children and we all moved here from New York City. We all moved here for a very compelling reason. Again, it was because of the lifestyle that we can enjoy here and raise our children here. This property would do absolutely nothing to that effect. This property is going to be a blight on the landscape. This property, whatever this development company is telling you, there is going to be far more tree removal than is indicated here. The steep slopes, I mean look at the contour lines here folks. There’s a good reason why those septic tanks are located 200 meters from the properties. I invite any one of the honorable members of this planning committee to my house to look at my back door and tell me where you’re going to be able to locate a house without, as the last speaker said, moving an incredible amount of land in the process. And you’ll have to inevitably take down all of those trees. The reason why the septics are located there is because it’s the only flat section available on that. So you’re talking about basically destroying the entire hillside. That is what me and all of those neighbors that I’ve mentioned to you, and of course because it’s all of our kid’s bedtimes right now. They would have loved to have joined me here for this. I’m ignoring that for the importance of this committee meeting. But every one of those views is going to be impacted and we don’t need any further downward pressure on home prices at this time, especially as we’re being subjected to the closure of Indian Point, nobody’s fault in this room of course but that’s a consideration. I can tell you, I’m guessing because you’re all sitting on this Planning Board that none of you have recently purchased your houses in this area or moved to this area, maybe that’s an assumption that’s unfounded but I can tell you as somebody who has recently gone through that experience, there’s no shortage of supply in Cortlandt Manor. I think there’s currently something like a 120 homes on the market at this moment. They range in prices everywhere from your lower end $300,000 all the way to your million and multi-million residences. These three accommodations that are going to do a great disservice to this community are going to absolutely do nothing to increase that supply substantially and it’s going to affect this community greatly. I hope that you will absolutely reconsider this proposal and just kill it where it stands. I echo the prior remarks. It’s a bum deal. I have a start-up company. I’ve been involved with lots of start-up companies. It’s a bum deal when your assets get locked up in something that ends up having no value. I’ve committed more years in my life to something like that than I’d like to admit but that happens when you make a bad call. That property should not be developed. It is far too steep. It is far too greatly impacting in a negative way to the surrounding community and the amount of wildlife that goes through there, I can assure you, a lot of it scares me actually. There’s a couple of things that I’d rather weren’t in my backyard but trust me, they’re there, they were here first and they should be allowed to live there as well. That’s really all I have to say. So thank you very much for your time. 
Mr. Michael Martino introduced himself and stated I live at 26 Dickerson Road. I’m a lifelong resident here. I just want to kind of touch on that. Hendrick Hudson graduate. I’ve spent many, many years obviously in the back woods, Blue Mountain stuff. Just want to say I’ve know that mountain my whole life and just seeing what’s been done to it in the last few years, though it is to continue with this mountain being broken down. It’s tough. It’s a beautiful area and this is tough just to tell you someone who’s been here looking at that, this whole place, my whole life. It’s tough to see sometimes, now I happen to live there which makes it obviously a little tougher. I just want to touch base with the project, talking about building the homes. I’m in heavy highway construction down in New York City, capital improvement projects. We’re digging with rock. We’re on a mountain. I can’t tell you how bad projects go and that’s just digging in the street when you’re dealing with electric cables, sewers. I mean there’s stuff but you can just completely be thrown off everything with just coming across one wrong thing. Now you’re blasting rock. Once you start blasting rock, once you start moving stuff, you really have no idea what you can unfold there. That’s a concern. I’m concerned of this project’s schedule for maybe two years or so and I’m just really concerned that typical construction projects have the opportunity to run past and what people who are issuing these permits like to hear. But most importantly out of this is that I have a four and a half year old son. The people across the street from me have a five and a three-year-old. My next door neighbor to the left have a nine-year-old girl. My neighbors to the right have a 12 and 14 year old. Two houses, I’m almost at the top Dickerson, two houses up I believe their kids are still living with the mother and father. They had two young kids. Down five, six houses from me, I believe a one-year-old now. So I’m at that point now where I want to teach my son how to ride a bicycle. These are formative years. I’d hate to spend the next two plus years with nothing but construction traffic, and I see it, and it’s going to be a mess. Dust control, the whole nine yards. It’s all nice in theory until you actually see it put out there consistently day after day. It doesn’t always go as good as they want to sell it. I’m really concerned and I hoping the parents are here are going to speak up but I didn’t move to this street to watch it get ripped up like this, to be a prisoner of my own home. They’re going to be behind my house blasting and I can’t take the kid in the road and ride, I can’t do anything on that. I can’t go – and the backyard’s going to be not a pleasant place either when the trees are getting ripped down, they’re blasting for one of the lots for me. I just see losing a lot of peace of mind in a place that is just so beautiful and I strive to get and I love it up there. I just don’t want to see decimate anymore than it has to be. I hope you guys take that into consideration. The street is getting younger. There is turn over, as I’ve just pointed out, and that’s probably going to continue. People are getting a little older. People are moving and just please keep in mind, at the end of the day, there are a fair amount of children including my own, and young children, kids who can make mistakes in a heartbeat. Kids that aren’t old enough to really rationalize anything and God forbid just between losing the ability to have fun, do what we want to do, and God forbid – I’ve watched these trucks they’re going down a slope like this 20 miles an hour, they’re going to be on that Jake break. It sounds good. I just think the implementation of a lot of stuff and I’ve just seen it take turns for the worse. It’s no fun then with your job – I’d hate to experience it as a home owner. Thank you, that’s it.
Mr. Steve Cohen introduced himself and stated I live at 2407 Maple Avenue. Following up on what the neighbor’s are saying, I think the folks on Maple Avenue have not the same issues as folks who live up on Dickerson but at the same time, I moved here in 1994 which is almost 25 years and when I moved in I had little kids like, it’s good to hear from some of the younger neighbors and folks moving into the town. I’d hike back there, walked back there. To folks on Maple Avenue I think that mountainside is kind of like their backyard. Almost all of us are kind of dealing with the wetlands area back there. We don’t have a lot of open space around our houses. It’s that wetlands area and then that mountainside that really kind of is our backyard. When I look up back there, like in the winter maybe see a light or two from the houses that are up the hill, but if I heard right, if it’s 8 acres for three houses, it seems like it’s tremendously inconsistent with most of the other properties in the area. And to have all those people on Dickerson, up on Dickerson Mountain, and the folks on Maple Avenue who look back at that, it just seems sort of disproportionate. I feel like I’ve been coming to these meetings probably since I was the age of my new neighbor who’s probably 20 years younger than me and it’s always the same discussion, that area is completely inappropriate for more building. I would greatly encourage to not going forward with this. The only other thing I’m just going to remind, I know it’s not directly related but pretty much across the street from where I live, a couple of years ago there was some other proposed development where they blasted out part of the hillside and I frankly don’t even know the legal status of that property at this point, but there’s now kind of a barricade and it’s completely undeveloped and I don’t know how many trees got torn down. If they can put three little houses in the woods and not tear down the whole hillside, fine, but if they’re going to be clear-cutting thousands of trees, I can’t even fathom how horrendous that would look. Thank you.

Ms. Kirsten Sollek introduced herself and stated I live at the Hilltop Drive which is sort of the opposite end of that street. Unfortunately I’m also a New York transplant. I came here three years ago from Queens. That was a little bit of a culture shock. My reason for coming here was not quite as happy. Five years ago I was diagnosed with breast cancer and, as one does, I’m sure people in this room can relate to this, you take stock of life when something like that happens and so I really took a close look at my life and my stress, and my environment. And after two years of that I decided I had to leave New York and we found this area and we fell in love with it. We thought it was great. We bought the house and we’ve been here three years. We’ve been completely blessed out for that time. One of the things that happened as we were buying our house was we got a little obsessed with Zillow, which happens, real estate porn. We’re zooming in on various properties that were near the house that we bought and discovered that there was a 10 acre plot of land directly behind our home on which our driveway has an easement so it’s 10 Hilltop Drive which is completely undeveloped and forested like what’s being threatened right now. We found out that a gentleman named [Yuo Dos Unhos] who’s a contractor and a builder, an independent builder had found that land, found that it was for sale for a very low amount of money, snapped it up, was going to build a house on it for himself. And the reason we found out about this was, as we were in an inspection for our home we saw a note, it was a phone message that had been left on the kitchen counter by that resident saying, “the owner of 10 Hilltop wants to talk to you about expanding your driveway to build behind the home.” And we thought, we’ve already put down earned money. We’re going to have a Mcmansion in our backyard. And we have complete privacy and complete beautiful wooded beauty behind that house. That’s what we fell in love with. My husband who’s extremely resourceful and who is not here tonight but basically tracked the builder down. We badgered him for a year and offered – because we could see how much he bought the property for and at that time we had enough to buy it for that amount. We basically offered over, and over again to buy that property from him so that we could protect against something like this from happening frankly but also preserve that area and he caved. Would you mind pointing up the graphic, the first graphic you showed?
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked the aerial?
Ms. Kirsten Sollek responded yes. Can you scoot it up a little bit? At the very bottom of the screen, you see the four houses that are along there. That’s 8 Hilltop Drive, 6, 4 and 2. Our property goes from to the left side of our house, and where it says undisturbed forest, it’s undisturbed because I own it. It was done purposely. We were that serious about changing our lifestyles so that we could have real peace, real quiet, real preservation, real environmental health, real personal health. We were that serious and parted with a fair amount of money to be able to buy that property to be able to protect against this. Now this doesn’t help you. This ends right where – and I don’t have anymore money so I can’t buy more. To address the runoff issues, it was just occurring to me while people were showing the video of the crazy water. Our driveway was totally destroyed. It was like the surface of the moon when we moved in. We had potholes all over the place and in the winter it would rain. Water comes up through the potholes and freezes on the driveway surface. We had, a year and a half after we moved, we had to completely rip out the entire driveway, redo it, redo drainage, all of that stuff. It’s already buckling. There’s already a problem with that. And that is the problem without things being compromised and things have currently caused runoff to not be an issue. It’s there already. I certainly appreciate the concerns about foundations and blasting. I’ve hiked up into those 10 acres and I’ve seen the cylinder holes and the rock where the blasting was done originally when the development was first made. The other thing I’d like to bring up is just a specific list of concerns because there have been a lot of things brought up: traffic, of course we’re concerned about noise. I happen to be a professional classical musician so I’m a singer, I’m an opera singer and yes [mumbles] or I can. But I end up working from home. I prepare musically from home. The concern about noise is not only a problem for me being able to work at home but if my hearing is at risk, that can negatively impact my employability, and my impound, my earning ability. That’s a real issue, not to mention just the headache and the stress and anxiety of it that would be ongoing for two years at the minimum. We all know it’s going to go on for longer than that. Here is my list of very specific concerns: noise of construction, blasting, noise of the trucks, idling of the trucks, traffic of the trucks up and down Dickerson, safety of the pedestrians and drivers up and down Dickerson. We have no sidewalk so there’s nowhere to walk except on the road so people are walking their babies, their dogs, themselves up and down that road all the time, there’s already sort of risky to do that. To add to this will be a problem. Trash is a problem in our area. Construction workers will be on their breaks, and they will smoke, and they will eat food, and they will discard their waste and it will not always go into a garbage can. That’s a problem. Displacement of animals, disruption of environments, and trees, negative effect on water pressure, maybe eventually it gets better, maybe not. The potential duration of all of this, the mental health issue of everybody who lives up in that area. I brought up my own diagnosis. I’m not the only person who has cancer on Dickerson Mountain. Other people are ill. Other people also are there to find a way to make themselves healthy. I’m not making myself a special case here. I’m just bringing up because it happens to be my experience. All of this for three homes seems really, really sad. It would be really horrible. The other issue is too let’s say it goes forward and we all want to move because it sucks to live, who’s going to buy a house in the middle of  a construction zone? It’s going to be very hard to sell a home during that time. I’m sure I’ve forgotten something but that’s most of what I wanted to say and I appreciate you hearing me and hearing everybody else and I hope that the right decision gets made. Thank you.

Mr. Andrew Winshire introduced himself and stated and I live on Lakeview Avenue East which is a few hundred feet from Dickerson Road. The wetlands, unfortunately when they built Dickerson Road were totally destroyed and I’ll get to that. The wetlands used to be wet and they fed a small stream that goes onto Furnace Dock Road, along Furnace Dock Road and then it cuts down into a stream that goes behind Lakeview Avenue East. Lakeview Avenue East is a dead end. It curls around the end of Lakeview Avenue East. It goes into a lake. That lake is now a sewer because of the change in the direction of where the water goes from the building of Dickerson Road itself and the housing there. I don’t what you have or what building will have on that lake. That lake, we used to go swimming, fishing, canoeing, now you don’t want to go within a hundred feet it. It’s disgusting. That’s about all I have to say. It’s an abomination that that land should not be touched. Thank you.
Ms. Rose Rawling stated I already introduced myself earlier but as a matter of fact I also live on Lakeview Avenue East and I have a large dock area onto that lake. Six years ago when I moved into this house that lake was clear and my sons and I boated on that lake. I didn’t even know this project was in the works. Yesterday, these lovely young women came to my house and told me. And I said, “let me show you something.” And I walked them out to the back of my house to see a lake that is basically impassible. It is a swamped of about four feet of water. I have asked the environmental engineer of the Town of Cortlandt why this is happening because when I moved in this lake did not look like this. This lake was gorgeous. I can’t even get through my channel to get out to the larger lake now. I cannot possibly imagine what additional runoff will do to our beautiful lake. It’s not just our lake, it’s the one on the – if you go up Maple, there’s water over there that’s practically all algae bloom. Now I don’t know who is responsible for these lakes but I do know that putting extra strain on this environment right now is not going to help these lakes. I sat here in this room several years ago when we bought Railroad Pond from ConEd and you did the right thing then. You saved the wetland. You kept water clear. You need to do the right thing now and not allow this to go forward. The water in this area cannot stand the stress. Thank you.

Mr. Rama Mukkamalla introduced himself and stated I live at 22 Dickerson Road here. It’s across the street at 38.5 acre where return it’s across the street there. We bought this home two years back and it’s really crazy when I say we literally saw more than 50 homes in just three weeks. I had literally seen several homes and finally found this area to be very beautiful. And in fact, during different seasons I see the entire landscape is so beautiful when you go up the mountain and everything and I’m really scared that the safety of my kids as well. And many of the neighbors here they have many more concerns than myself and they did raise very good questions regarding the very detailed concerns. But I would actually talk only about the safety of the family. They actually say they put post 20 miles, or 30 mile zone limit and it’s true there are not speed limit zone limits safety there but even though they post it, along the curves, I drive along the curves. In fact, for the safety of my wife, I bought a new BMW four-wheel drive in order to drive along those curves because it is very scary, especially during winter as well. And they say it might take them two years and it’s absolutely no way that those huge trucks would drive along that even during the winter without any cause of concern. Especially for the family, I don’t have a family right now but I do plan to have it soon and it’s sad that around the time I’m planning to have a family they’re applying to have this two year term of project. All I’m saying is to consider all the resident’s concerns. There is a lot of investment others have done, including myself to consider all the things that neighbors and myself have said. Thank you.
Ms. Hillary Kitasei introduced herself and stated I live at 2503 Maple Avenue, really on Twin Lake and I’ve submitted earlier comments which I hope will still be considered for this proposal. And I don’t want to repeat what I’ve said in those comments which were more technical but looking at this new layout, I have to say, it looks like the most Gerrymandered district that I’ve ever seen. Not to be fooled by it, because when you punch holes in an urban forest those little strips are nothing but edge and that is the most degraded form of open space. So what I want to ask you  -- first of all, I should have started by saying, thank you very much for the acquisition or for negotiating the open space that you did and I think that that was just magnificent but please pause before you degrade what you have made this great investment in because what you’re going to do is take this pristine piece of open space, which is connected, it’s too bad we don’t have a much larger view of the area because this open space, the value of it is the context which is in Westchester County and in Cortlandt this tremendous, pristine open space and yet you’re going to create at one end a very visible bald, scenic, one face is going to be a bald landscape, how to destroy what you’ve created. Thanks.

Mr. Jacob Lish introduced himself and stated I live on Furnace Dock Road, not Dickerson. I wanted to backup a couple of persons in front of me. I’ve been there for something like 28 years. I live on Lakeview East, the corner of Furnace Dock Road, Lakeview East. I backup on that pond that’s turning into a swamp as they say. The problem I am seeing is this is not about three homes. This is about a community. You cannot tear down thousands of trees, blow up half a mountain, build a new road, and expect everything to stay the same. It’s not going to. One of the things I have seen in 28 years is our wildlife and environment is disappearing. Being that I back up on the pond, I shouldn’t say this, but I see more geese than I need but the song birds are disappearing. I don’t see the deer I used to see and all the wildlife is going away and that’s because the environment’s falling apart thanks to the expansion of Valeria, one of them and what they’ve done. These people are honest people. They’re in business, but they are not about community. They are not about environment and they are not about people. We do not need anymore buildings and I think the trees and the environment and the wildlife are worth a hell of a lot more than three custom-built homes.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated good evening Madame Chair, members of the board. My name is Elizabeth Peterson. I represent myself and my husband Kenneth Grossberger. We live at 5 Hilltop Drive, right down the road from the proposed drive into this proposed development. I have given, sent Mr. Kehoe and Ms. Puglisi pretty detailed list of my concerns via email. I hope you’ve received it.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the board has all the comments.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated because their email bounced back a couple of times. I won’t go into every single point on that our already communicated concerns however, listening to the developer I do have some quick questions that seem to be new information. The previous quote we received about how many trees would be clear-cut was at 3,400? Has that changed?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no I think it’s 1,200. The 3,400 number is in the chart but I think that’s the overall on the lot and then 1,200 is what’s being proposed to be removed.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated one of my questions also is they’re listing a small amount of acreage however, these lots are huge, they’re substantial. One of them is over 12 acres and one of them is about 6 acres. I don’t know what the other is. Therefore, the potential for more encroachment by potential owners of these properties is not guaranteed that these lands will not have further damage done to them by whatever rights new owners would have to do to these lands. The 8 acre figure doesn’t hold any water to me. Just want to state that for the record. I also would like to know when they mentioned access road and that that would be greened up. Can someone define what that means to me? Greened up with what? And what’s been destroyed and what will be replaced with?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded your addressing the board and they can answer that question but they can answer it probably when you’re done.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated okay. I would like to hear that. I would also like to know what a buffer from the wetlands is. I don’t know the definition of that and I don’t know what that entails.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated our town code regulates it to 100 feet.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson asked 100 feet of what?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded it’s 100 feet from the designated wetland. We have a separate independent consultant who’s a soil scientist delineate the wetlands, the edge of the wetland from 100 feet from that edge is considered a wetland buffer.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson asked cut from what edge please?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded from the delineated wetland. There’s criteria in which a soil an area is considered a wetland. Once that area’s been established and delineated in the field, the buffer is drawn from that delineation point, a hundred feet from it in all direction.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and you can’t disturb within the buffer area. So any wetland as is designated, you draw a line 100 feet away, or around and you can’t encroach – well with a permit.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you have to have a permit to do it.

Mr. Steven Kessler we’d have to approve encroachment in a buffer zone.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we don’t do it all that often.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated it doesn’t seem like very much, for the record. I’d also like to address another thing they made a comment about that in order to mitigate erosion and sediment control that they will be watering the site which poses actually another issue of water pressure in our area. If they are constantly watering it down in order to prevent dust, and I’m sure all of my neighbors agree that feeling like we’re going to have to live in a home with our windows closed form dust and noise is not something any of us would look forward to or want to endure. I enjoy my fresh air. I live on the top, not the highest level but one of the highest levels and I have my windows open pretty much most of the time. I rarely close them and turn the air conditioning. That is something that I value highly. So feeling like I have to close my windows to dust pollution and noise pollution is something that I am very much disturbed by. I have a question for the board. I’d like to know if this applicant has received wetland permits yet from the DEC or the Army Corps of Engineers?

Mr. Tom Wood responded that would be part of the process as it goes forward if any state wetland permits are required, they’ll be submitted and come back to the board.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson asked so that hasn’t been honored yet?

Mr. Tom Wood responded I don’t know if any are required on it yet.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I do not believe with this current proposal they are disturbing a wetland buffer that’s regulated by the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation. It’s all local wetlands and local steep slopes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so the Planning Board would have to issue the local wetland permit but we don’t believe the DEC would have to issue a permit. 

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson asked and why is that?

Mr. Tom Wood responded DEC only regulates wetlands in excess of 12 acres. Any wetland less than 12 acres is regulated by the Town of Cortlandt’s wetlands…

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson asked so are you defining these wetlands as separate from the watershed that it is part of and the land that is crucial to sustain a wetland healthy system?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded no, that’s not happening. 

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated because the entirety of these lots is much more than 12 acres.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated no, a wetland is a certain criteria in which an area is considered a wetland. Once those criteria are met that’s the definition of a wetland. Hydric soils, vegetation, water levels, etc create the wetland. Portions of the site are encumbered by wetland, vernal pools, etc. We’ve had an independent consultant go out in the field, evaluate the wetlands, delineate the wetlands. We had a separate independent consultant go out, perform and prepare a biodiversity study to assess the impacts to local vegetation fauna, animals, etc. That’s all been received, filed, and documented with the Planning Board. It’s on the applicant’s burden of proof to show that they are not going to be disturbing large portions of steep slopes, tree removals, wetlands disturbance in the buffer, etc, in order to adversely impact the findings of those reports and to properly mitigate. It’s part of the process and that’s what we’re working towards.
Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated for the record, I disagree and environmental protection agency literature disagrees with your definition of wetlands that you can separate them out from the surrounding areas, and the land, and that uphill land from the wetlands for the health and the prevention of degradation to the wetlands. Having said that, I’m wondering, I just would like to know also, if the local now, you say only local permits are required, what all methods does the board require to notify all of us if those permits go through for the two week notification of comment period on the permits?

Mr. Tom Wood responded this process is what we’re in now is the public hearing to hear your concerns and then the board will evaluate the information and material it already has. The applicant may on your own submit additional materials. But this is all part of the process. The Planning Board would consider all the permits, any permits that might be needed: trees, wetlands, steep slopes, as well as the subdivision approval.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson asked but my question sir if those permits are granted, what period of time, two-week proposal, what inclusive methods do you take to notify residents?

Mr. Tom Wood responded what happens is this is all on the town’s website. The meetings are public and there’ll come a point when a public hearing will be closed, then the Planning Board has 62 days to make a decision on all those permits and then an open meeting just like this, as the board did earlier, they take up resolutions of either approval or disapproval.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if the Planning Board approves the project, they would be approving the wetland permit, the steep slope permit, and the tree removal permit at the same time and in the resolution of approval the burden is on the applicant, but we take all this information and put it in a resolution which states – and we’re not there yet, but it would state that based on the project, and based on the review that there’s not an adverse environmental impact to the wetlands or the steep slopes. That’s the only way the Planning Board could approve the project if they reach that determination, and we’re not there yet.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated I also would like to know whether this development is indeed in compliance with the Town of Cortlandt’s zoning codes?

Mr. Tom Wood responded yes, the lots are the size allowed under the zoning for one lot and then they have to go through the process.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson asked were any variances issued to our town ordinance in order to be in compliance?

Mr. Tom Wood asked which zone is this?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded R-80.

Mr. Tom Wood responded R-80, 2 acres. So they have to have at least 2 acres per home.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated no traditional variances are needed, dimensional or area variances but the Planning Board would have to issue all of those environmental permits but the lots as laid out meet the dimensional requirements of the code.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated thank you. I’d just like to read this thank you for your time to listen to us. I’ve done some research and the EPA Office of Water and Wetlands state that wetlands are a vital link between water land and an integral part of any healthy water system. I quote from them: “the functions of a wetland and the values of these functions to human society depend on a complex set of relationships between the wetland and the other ecosystems in the watershed.” So I am completely against the premise of you isolating these wetlands out from the rest of the surrounding lands…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I think what Mr. Preziosi mentioned and I can get you a copy of it. In addition to just delineating the wetlands, the town hired a biodiversity consultant and the biodiversity consultant looks at things much greater than the wetlands. Looks at the habitat, vernal pools, how it’s all connected and what the construction of this subdivision would do to the habitat, how it would fragment it. And there is a report in the file dealing specifically with what you’re asking. But a wetland itself is measured. That doesn’t mean that the board doesn’t look at things outside of that, but a wetland has to have soils and vegetation to be defined as a wetland but then in addition to that we bring a biodiversity consultant in to tell us additional information beyond the wetland and I can get you that report.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated I would like that.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I think a biodiversity consultant also addressed the wildlife pathways which are important and I think someone brought that up. That’s all looked at comprehensively.
Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated well if it’s looked at comprehensively I don’t know why this hasn’t been squashed already because obviously those houses are in direct pathway to any wildlife going back-and-forth.

Mr. Tom Wood stated the reason why we have to go through a process is every property owner has a right to due process and this applicant has come to the town and indicated that they think that they can get the three lots so they have the entitlement to go through the process then the Planning Board makes a decision in accordance with the regulations.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated I hope this biodiversity consultant continue with the EPA “that a watershed in its entirety is a geographic area in which water, sediments, and dissolved materials drain from higher elevations” which in this case there are very steep slopes higher than the wetlands, to a common low lying outlier basin, a point on a larger stream lake, underlying aquifer estuary which other gentleman addressed. This system goes down into other lakes and systems across Furnace Dock Road and over into Lakeview Drive and other areas. It is all connected. “The combination of shallow water, high levels of nutrients and primary productivity is ideal for the development of organisms that form the base of the food web. So there’s a complete web in this entire watershed and that feed many species, the fish, amphibians, shell fish, and insects. Many species of birds and mammals rely on wetlands for food, water, and shelter, especially during migration and breeding. EPA states that development pressure is emerging as the largest cause of wetlands loss and that wetland degradation is as big a problem as outright wetland lost though more difficult to identify and quantify.” I’m very concerned that the environmental biodiversity studies have not been done frequently enough. It changes seasonally. I’ll continue, “hydraulic alterations can significantly alter the soil chemistry and plant and animal communities. Common hydraulic alterations in wetland areas include among other things deposition of film material for development and the addition of impervious surfaces to the watershed thereby increasing the water and pollutant runoff into wetlands. The primary pollutants causing wetland degradation are sediment, fertilizer, human sewage” thus septic drains “animal waste, road salts, pesticides,” which if you’re replacing healthy tree systems with lawned areas will be most likely increased as most people have lawn treatment companies working on their lands, spraying pesticides and insecticides, “heavy metals, and selenium which can come from many sources including runoff and air pollution from cars” and therefore from trucks as well. “The long term health of a wetland is dependent on the interconnectedness of the lands around it in the entire watershed.” Cutting down even 1,200 trees “will diminish the air quality, the water quality, the ability to maintain the water flow sheets and patterns that keep the wetlands healthy and contribute to erosion and potential flooding. Replacing these trees with construction pollution and ultimately grassy lawns with a high likelihood that they will be treated with herbicides and pesticides will all contribute to the degradation of the wetlands over the long term. The degradation of our wetlands over time is just as ruinous as if they were drained and filled. In fact, the EPA lists development pressure, not the drainage of wetlands as the biggest threat to wetland loss.” Just pressure, and I cannot see how three homes is not pressure on our wetlands. Have any of the environmental assessments done? I would like to know. Have they taken into the account the long term affect of wetland degradation and the impact on the watershed system as a whole? You said they have but I’d like to see it. Have they addressed the many migratory species that depend on the resources of this wetland or have they only studied permanent species? There are many migrant species that depend on the wetland conservations and the EPA has stated as we confirm wetlands are crucial to this country. Their importance has been reestablished and this country, as depending on the region has lost anywhere from 50% to 60% or more of our wetlands. Thereby, I highly encourage you to not contribute to part of that. The EPA states that “it’s very difficult to document population trends of many reptiles such as: salamanders, frogs, and turtles due to their secretive natures their large home ranges, their low population densities and rare congregational behavior.” I am wondering if these species have been studied in different seasons by this consultant and regularly over time to determine if their populations are changing or declining already? 

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s interesting you bring that up. On this particular case, not to the extent that you’re mentioning but our biodiversity consultant went out in the fall and determined that the fall was not the appropriate time to do the analysis so the Planning Board required the applicant to take a six month time out and then the consultant went back out in the spring which was a much better time to analyze the vernal pools. So he does take that into account. You should keep in touch with my office. These reports were done years ago and to your point, maybe they need to be redone and updated which is a common thing that happens on applications, but those studies have been done.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson asked have they been done in other seasons other than spring?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded well he did it in the fall and then he did in the spring. He said the fall was not the right time to do it so he decided to come back into the spring. But you should look at all of the reports. I believe the board is going to adjourn the hearing so there will be an opportunity to see the reports and then if you have additional comments.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and even the neighboring Valeria which was brought up and the impact that had, extensive reports on turtles, other wildlife, this thick, so this is all done.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and with respect to Valeria, which this project is a little more difficult because Valeria, I believe, wanted 253 homes and ended up with 147. A hundred and forty seven is still a huge number but going through that process, the Planning Board knocked out lots, redesigned it and that’s part of the process and that was based on biodiversity studies and things like that. Now, not implying that it’s a perfect project but that’s the type of thing that the Planning Board does.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated and I would like to know where all that wildlife went. Anyway. I have literature I’d like to hand out to the board regarding the wetland health and protection as well as literature indicating the risk and danger or increased pesticides and herbicides used by residents in lawn treatment companies. The World Health Organization has deemed glypocite which is the main ingredient in Roundup and other treatments, the most commonly used herbicide as probably carcinogenic to humans as well as the insecticides tetrafol plus, pyrethroid, malathion, and diazinon, 2-4D which is the second most commonly used herbicide has been found to be the cause of malignant lymphoma in dogs. There are a large number of dogs that walk up and down the streets of this neighborhood and that is consistent with findings of non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma in humans regularly exposed to these toxins because the histology and epidemiology of these lymphomas between dogs and humans is very similar. There are also findings that dust residue from such pesticides and herbicides tracks on dogs, children and shoes which indicates that the residues does not stay in place and can very likely travel, i.e. run off into water tables and thus wetlands. DEP states that certain chemicals can build up in turtle eggs, reduce eggshell thickness and cause reproductive failure. This does not happen in short term periods and I don’t know what long term studies are planned on this but I do not believe that short term studies are anything that should be considered in the health of these wetlands. Long term studies are the only way to determine any long term effects of poisons, toxins, and the runoff, and the sediment, etc. There’s no way to determine whether these wetlands are going to be degraded in the long term unless you do a long term study. I’d also like to address the issue of noise pollution, and the impacts on our health. I have literature here to give you that indicates that hearing damage or loss can occur from not only brief exposures to a high density sound, but from chronic or frequent exposure to moderately intense sounds and prolonged exposure over 85 decibels such as from power tools is very risky. The higher the sound, the less time it takes to cause damage and the effects on your hearing is cumulative. You do not get better. Every exposure has the potential to add to the damage of the noise. Noise pollution can be correlated to health issues such as hypertension, ischemic heart disease, sleep disturbance, depression, anxiety, cognitive development in children who have been studied and proven to not do as well in school when they are exposed to chronic noise. Work productivity and noise will absolutely diminish all of our quality of life. I mentioned there are other issues I addressed that have been repeated by my fellow neighbors that I sent in a letter such as the flooding, congestion, safety, etc, but I would like to take a few more moments to elaborate on two very personal issues to me. Our home already has sink holes. It already has retaining walls collapsing and I have a foundation structure issue which part of my house has sunk an inch already due to poor and incorrect drainage and fill processes during the original construction of my home. So we are struggling financially to address these issues. We don’t have – we can’t fix all of them yet and we simply cannot risk anymore damage of our home due to blasting or regular shock waves that will come from this construction. I would really like to know from the board what guarantee does the town have established or will establish that we will be protected from consequential home issues and damage and any monetary hardship and over what period of time after this construction is finished, because obviously we could see the results in a delayed response after all of these disturbances to the mountain. Has there been any guarantee of any kind of compensation, any kind of protection from damage to our homes, to our foundations, and our retaining walls?

Mr. Tom Wood responded the only time that there’s any, if there were going to be any blasting, they would do a survey and if there was any damage attributed to that blasting that would be convincible but everything has been under the state building code for the construction of the homes.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson asked and how do you monitor the waves, just like an earthquake of vibrational waves and things and how far they’re going out on the mountain?

Mr. Tom Wood asked with the blasting?

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson responded yes.

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded the town ordinance has a local blasting code in which is based on the state building code and the State Office of Code. In that requirement the town has adopted a policy requiring a pre-blast and post-blast surveys, active monitoring during all blast periods, a blasting protocol needs to be submitted to the town to review and approve. All blasters need to be licensed through New York State. There has to be an independent seismographic monitor installed at property lines closest to the nearest habitable building. So there’s all procedures and policies that have been adopted and approved, backed up by state requirements which the town follows. So that’s all has to be worked out. As far as we understand it, there has not been a proposal or any sort of indication that blasting is proposed on this site. That is a question that the applicant should address and answer as posed by the residents tonight.
Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated okay, thank you. Can you please clarify, if I understand correctly, that the seismic measurers would only be in the closest homes?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded depending upon the areas in which a developer proposes to blast, there’s requirements in order to set up monitors for seismographic activities and there’s velocity measurements that are taken at certain points and that’s usually placed at the property line closest to the nearest homes or areas of concerns if a resident has a particular concern, the town has the authority and the purview to say, “add another monitor here or an additional device at this location.” So that all has to be worked on and adopted as an approved blasting protocol. We have not gotten into that yet because, as I stated, there hasn’t been any indication that blasting is being proposed. 
Ms. Elizabeth Peterson asked so if that were to happen, any resident here could request a seismic monitor on their property?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes, we do notices, I want to say I believe it’s a thousand feet from the area of the blast in all directions. All those properties get noticed and then they have the ability to request, what’s known as a pre-blast survey, so your foundation, your retaining walls, any structural issues gets documented, photographed, etc and then it will get submitted back to the town before the blasting plan is approved.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson okay thank you. I’d also just like to state that I feel this issue has forced me to share information I normally wouldn’t but I have personal health issues that result in a disability and I am sure I’m not alone. Most people wouldn’t chose to speak about their privacy and their personal health issues, however, this development has a potential to seriously impact my wellbeing. I have suffered from clinical depression, anxiety my entire life. I suffered was is conventionally known as a nervous breakdown two years ago and as a result to this I cannot hold down a full time nor a regular part time job. I primarily work from my home for what I am able to do and I need you to know that the peace and quiet, and sanctuary of my home, sorry, and the surrounding nature that supports me in dealing with my health issues and allow me to function are crucial to my wellbeing and the stress of any kind, any kind, has a severe impact and already has, even having to deal with this issue, on my wellbeing. I’m very concerned that if this development should go ahead, that I will not be able to keep living in the home that I love and I would have to consider moving. I really need that to sit in with you. I really do. And as I brought up before, and as I brought up in my letter, if people were deciding to move because they could not tolerate this encroachment on their way of life, and the quality of life, and the beauty, and natural surroundings we all live in. Has anyone done a study on the ability to sell a home in a midst of mass construction and is there any compensation of the board from the lost wages, or financial difficulty from not being able to sell your home because of this development? Do you know what affect that will have on us in our ability to sell our homes?

Mr. Tom Wood responded no.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated I think that needs to be addressed. I also want to know, and I feel that the board owes us the transparency of guaranteeing that this town will acquire this development to ensure that they have physical integrity and are in good standing, and that they will not leave us mid-stream given that they owed 400,000 dollars in backed taxes, which to be honest, is completely unethical that it was forgiven and we’re not allowed to forgive our taxes. I don’t feel that the 400,000 dollar tax debt should ever been forgiven in any way. Come up with it. You made a business decision. Pay your taxes. So the fact that we’re facing a developer ruining our way of life, and this company’s going to profit off of our health issues, our misery, and the destruction of the beauty of this mountain I think is unconscionable, and I’m very scared that this company will fund and define it further financial issues after the destruction of our mountain and leave us mid-stream with nothing but destruction to live with. I thank you for your time. I would like to give you these materials. I don’t know who I should give them to. Thank you very much.

Ms. Joanna Mancusi introduced herself and stated my family and I live at 7 Hilltop Drive. We moved there in 1987. We were the first house on Hilltop Drive and the second house in the Powder Horn development. We lived through the construction of the entire Powder Horn development. We know what the blasting is like. We know what the trucks are like on the narrow road. My children were born there. I know what it’s like to have them to try to attempt to play in the street. The people who mentioned this before, it’s not going to be pretty. We’ve lived through that but we made a choice. At that time we knew what were getting into and we made the choice because we knew it was a beautiful place to live. And we’re happy we made that choice. However, it’s not been an easy place to live. I have the Town of Cortlandt Highway and Water Department on my speed dial on my phone at home because of two problems: too much water, and not enough water. You saw the example of too much water, well the result of that in the winter time is an ice skating rink on Hilltop Drive. I leave my home not knowing what I’m going to hit on the way down. Always iced up because of all the water running down from the lady who spoke before about her driveway problems, well that’s where it’s coming from, the top of the mountain, down Hilltop Drive, sheet of ice, need to call the Highway Department because every once in a while they forget to come every day and salt the road. That’s a fact of life. And the not enough water, we have a water pump and I have gone for weeks at a time not being able to shower in my home, having to travel to Croton to my sister’s house who’s kind enough to let me shower there. This problem particularly got worse when you put in the Valeria expansion. I cannot shower. I ask you: who’s your responsibility to, the people who live there, who have lived there since 1987 or to those people? Thank you. Good night.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I don’t see anyone else. Is there anyone on the board who wants to make a comment at this time?

Mr. George Kimmerling stated I think there was some discussion about whether blasting was happening or not happening and I think Mr. Preziosi you suggested perhaps they answer here today? I was just interested in the answer.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated in past practice it’s always something that comes up a little post-approvals, contractor runs into rock and then they have to blast so blasting is of a concern and it is a mountain so it’s not unreasonable to think that blasting would not be requested. It may be a benefit and at the purview of the board to request a blasting protocol be developed or at least a preliminary blasting protocol be developed for review during this process.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked it’s not anticipated at this point.

Ms. Margaret McManus asked Chris do you want to put up that cut fill?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that will take me a minute.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated so there is one area that is actually the end of the cul-de-sac where most of the cut is going to take place and there’s basically the rest of the area is fill. Again, the site is even for cut fill so there is not required to have truckloads of material brought on site or off site. There will not be…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked won’t you be taking 1,200 trees off site?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded well trees I don’t…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated let’s be realistic here. Yes, you’re going to cut and fill so that whatever you blow up, or dig up, you’re going to even out but there is going to be traffic up and down Dickerson with trees and what else, help me out here?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded there will be traffic. And there will be delivery of materials such as catch basins, manholes, pipes, lumber for construction of homes and there will be asphalt trucks when they finally pave the road and unless – if you’ll see…

Mr. George Kimmerling stated I’m sorry just to my question, the cutting means blasting or not necessarily?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded not necessarily. There are a lot of erratic on the site. You walked the site. There’s a lot of erratic, there’s not indication that there’s a lot of ledge. The two red areas that are farthest away from, or towards the north arrow, those are cuts for basins and then the cul-de-sac – that’s a cut for a basement and then the lower one Chris, that’s another cut for a basement, and then the largest area that’s cut within -- to cut the cul-de-sac and the driveway up to lot 3. The pinkish areas are also cut, they’re just not as deep. Green is still. Yellow is basically within a foot of existing grade.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so the rock would be then, if you don’t blast you’re using these pile driver things?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded it’s a hammer. Right now we do not anticipate that there would be blasting, but again, sometimes during construction when the contractor decides that it would be beneficial because there is a heavy lift in order to do blasting the pre-blasting survey, the post-blasting survey. It’s not something that we really want to do and we would find using the hammer is more efficient.
Mr. Robert Foley stated it’s hard to anticipate whether you’re going to have to blast. We’ve been through this with other projects in the town: multi-family homes, not 3, 20, 30, 40 and it’s always a key question at the local area contiguous residents ask. I believe there is a blasting protocol in the town. I can’t remember whether there is, if God forbid you’ve got to blast there’s a warning to the contiguous neighbors. I can’t remember the whole code but it is a big issue.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated yes, and these areas are not, obviously they’re not the areas that are the closest to the existing homes. 

Ms. stated [inaudible].

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there was also a question raised…

Ms. Margaret McManus responded actually Twin Lakes is on a different – yes, but they’re not directly close to your home. They’re over five or six hundred feet.

Members of the audience speaking [inaudible].

Ms. Margaret McManus responded Twin Lakes is…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we can’t have a dialogue back and forth.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and one other question that was raised is could you explain the greening of the road. I assume that means that after the construction of the septic system is done you will plant grass?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded correct. The whole road is…

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked which is this?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded right. There is actually a semi whole road already there. We’ve laid this out. We would obviously try to use whatever existing whole road there is. The whole road doesn’t meet town standards. It’s upwards of 15 to 20% grade but it’s really just to bring the soil down for the run a bank that’s needed for septic systems and then the construction of the septic systems. It’s indicated that it would receive four inches of top soil, seed, and mulch in order to re-green it. That area would just go back eventually to the surrounding area.

Mr. Robert Foley asked you mentioned when George or Steve both asked about material being brought up and you mentioned manhole cover and everything, where would the staging area – it would be inside your property?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley asked for everything? Nothing’s staged on the road, on the other existing Hilltop?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded no, nothing would be staged on the existing road.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked just to go back on this cut and fill issue, just so I’m clear and hopefully everybody else is. So you have approximately 30% of this site on slopes greater than 15% that’s going to be disturbed, your numbers not mine, 27.7 if we want to be exact. So you have 28% of slopes greater than 15%. You’re going to disturb those slopes and you’re going to fill that somewhere else. Are you raising the zero slopes up to something? What’s happening here? I’m just trying to understand when you have 30% of slopes that presumably are being disturbed…

Ms. Margaret McManus responded either they’re being disturbed by an inch or they’re being disturbed by three feet, it doesn’t matter if I’m scraping the dirt on disturbing them, so that’s within the limit of disturbance those slopes exist. So we are cutting in some places and filling in other places and some places…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but you’re not filling where you plan the septic on the flattest part of the property? Those are not being…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I think the question that should be asked is if any of the slopes are being worsened, increased in grade because of the construction activities?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded no.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so on the septic systems?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded so the septic systems, there’s criteria for separation to bedrock or ground water so these systems need to bring in a certain amount of fill in order to – so we’re going to raise those areas. So even though they’re flat, they need to be raised.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked does that show up as disturbed on the…

Ms. Margaret McManus responded yes, so if you look at the two lowest areas where there’s two…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked do you have the map with the…

Ms. Margaret McManus responded the overall plan.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked with the browns?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no. It might have been a long time ago but it’s not queued up for this meeting?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded Chris, on that thumb drive I gave you, I think there’s a steep slopes map.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked aerial on slope?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that looks like it. So if you go to the left, those white areas, that’s where the septic is going for two homes I believe. And you’re saying right now you’re indicating that’s 0-15% slope range?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded that’s 0 to 15% slope range.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated 0 to 15. So you’re saying that there’s a possibility that you’re going to take some of that cut and fill that area?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded there’s not a possibility, it’s absolutely going to happen. That area will receive fill.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so then everything’s disturbed. There’s nothing that’s not disturbed. Am I missing something here?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded if you go back – 8 acres of the 26 acres are disturbed. This colored map shows all of the disturbance. Everything that’s white isn’t disturbed but disturbed doesn’t mean there’s necessarily cut or fill on it. The red, and the pink, and the green, and the dark green, those are the areas of cut and fill. The area that’s yellow is basically within a foot of the existing grade.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated within a foot of the existing grade.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated so in this, the green line outlines the limits of disturbance.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated this steep slope map is showing all steep slopes along the 24 acres not necessarily just the limits of disturbance which is about 8 acres or so for the three lots. So the question is, how much steep slopes are you disturbing within the limits of disturbance whether or not you’re worsening like green in cuts and fills?

Mr. George Kimmerling asked I just have a follow up question on the question of staging of materials. We were out maybe a month ago, a couple of weeks ago up on Hilltop we were there together. It dead ends into what would then be the construction road. It would extend off of Hilltop. So when you go to build that road, obviously there’s nowhere for the trucks to go other than on Hilltop until you’ve built that road? I’m trying to understand exactly…

Ms. Margaret McManus stated they pull up to Hilltop and they’ll go straight into the property. 

Mr. George Kimmerling stated but right now that property is full of trees and rocks. So at some point they’re just going to sit on Hilltop.

Ms. Margaret McManus responded so you bring in a machine and you push in…

Mr. George Kimmerling stated and just start chopping.

Ms. Margaret McManus responded and they’ll make an area that can be – we’ll put in an erosion and sediment control, stabilized construction entrance. That’s the first thing that would go up so that any trucks that go onto the site or come off of the site would go through the stabilized construction entrance so that…

Mr. George Kimmerling asked so in terms of the phasing, how long does it take before there’s ample space on the site to have the trucks pull in as opposed to being on Hilltop because the site hasn’t actually started being constructed. Do you know what I mean?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded right, so what I have to get, I have to push in and get 20 feet wide by 20 feet deep and I can get three trucks in.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked how long does that take?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded a day.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you just go up with a bulldozer and you just barrel in.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated there’s not that many big trees that are right on the edge.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m not saying – but that’s the intent. You just go in and push in 50 feet and you’re done.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated push in and you start.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but you’d also grade it, because there is a drop down where we walked through on the sidewalk, I believe…

Ms. Margaret McManus stated we walked in over on the side, but if you walk in, straight in – also, you can push in. I don’t have to be at the finished grade when they start construction. I push in. I start my work.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated thank you.

Mr. Robert Foley stated we understand this from other projects when they start, but I think it would take more than…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked crazy question, would Hilltop have been approved today under the current rules?

Mr. Tom Wood responded probably not. I think that was the Powder Horn subdivision.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it’s a loaded question.

Mr. Tom Wood stated and that was prior to the wetlands, and steep slopes laws, and there was always great concern about the drainage system that was put in there. I have a vague recollection of that process.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I have a recollection. It was before wetlands and slopes. In some instances…

Mr. Tom Wood stated currently not as it is today.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the unintended consequences of Lakeview Avenue East and so forth.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Loretta, we’re about a third of the way through the agenda.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m about ready to make that announcement. We want to adjourn the hearing anyway. We planned to do that. So why don’t we just – it’s 10 o’clock almost and we have 10 additional applications to deal with so we would like very much to sort stop at this point.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I just want to say one thing. We talked last meeting about the tree trimming and the removal aspect of that agreement and nothing’s been changed on that and I have to repeat that it’s unacceptable to me that we’re going to memorialize the change in the law for just a few houses and we’re going to make a Planning Board in the future stick by that. It’s just not acceptable. We’ve got a tree preservation law. It was hard to pass. It’s got tight rules. It’s going to get even tighter because we’re working on another one and so giving these home owners the right on their property, first of all, because this thing goes through two things: on their property they’re basically allowed to cut down more trees than anybody else in town is allowed to. And then they’re allowed to go on, what has now been given to the town property, and use an excuse of pedestrian access and lake views which is not part of our law. That wouldn’t be a reason why we would allow for tree cutting. I’m just going to say it again, if that’s not changed I’m going to have a hard time approving it.

Mr. Peter Daly stated I’d like to see a surface hydrology report on not just the property in question but the properties contiguous because if they’re having all sorts of problems and I can really understand. I had a river going through my yard during Hurricane Floyd too. That being said Floyd was a one in a million storm. We haven’t had anything that bad since but I’ve seen it over the years when we do have to have re-establish different benchmarks for deciding what certain hundred year, two hundred year, five hundred year storms are. The storms do get worse. I’d like to see something like – at least in the material I have present, I haven’t seen anything like a surface hydrology report. I think it’s time we take a look at that again. Let’s not make the mistake that the people who designed Hilltop in the first place made…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated our storm water pollution prevention plan would be required in accordance to these manual preliminary report has been filed. They are required to mitigate water quality volumes and water quantity volumes to a hundred year storm at is it is over 5 acres in disturbance. We can look to expand…

Mr. Peter Daly stated I would hope it’s a little bit tighter. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we can look to expand to do more of a comprehensive water…

Mr. Peter Daly stated especially on these big hill sides like that. Water goes downhill, it’s gravity and when it comes down as fast as it does in a hurricane like that, it doesn’t get absorbed into the ground, it just flows.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we are going to wrap this up at this point. We will adjourn, have you back for the August 28th meeting.   
Mr. Steven Kessler stated you’re all invited back. It’s a public hearing. We’re adjourning it so we’ll continue it next time so you and others are welcome back and say what you want to say.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we move the public hearing to August 28th.

With all in favor saying "aye". 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.


*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS:

PB 2017-4  a.
Letter dated March 12, 2018 from Cary Rooney of Central Turf & Irrigation located at 2711 Lexington Avenue requesting Planning Board approval for the covering of the material bins approved by Planning Board Resolution 8-17.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we approve this.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have a resolution.

Mr. Peter Daly asked do you have anything to say sir?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I do. Just as a reminder I think we traded some emails that you were here before. You thought you needed to go to the Zoning Board for the height of the covering. You do not need to go to the Zoning Board for the height. So the Planning Board would be approving the covering of the bins. They are not approving any salt storage there. That season is coming up. If you want to store salt there, you have to meet with staff first, talk to us, see if it’s even feasible and then come back to the board for any salt storage that’s not included in this resolution.

Mr. Cary Rooney stated absolutely, understood.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and then I think we didn’t get our 5% construction inspection fee the first time through. We will confirm that but that’s also in the resolution that we didn’t get it the first time through.

Mr. Cary Rooney stated I’ll make sure it’s taken care tomorrow.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you’ll get a resolution in the mail and then we can talk about it.

Mr. Cary Rooney stated okay, very good. Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated very good thank you.

Mr. Peter Daly stated I move that we approve this Resolution #23-18.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 
PB 2018-5  b.
Application of 3120 Lexington LLC for Site Development Plan approval and for Tree Removal and Wetland Permits for a proposed hardware store and a warehouse serving the hardware store located in an existing building at 3120 Lexington Avenue as shown on a 2 page site plan drawing entitled “Proposed Site Alterations, 3120 Lexington Avenue” prepared by Hudson Engineering & Consulting P.C. latest revision dated June 25, 2018, a 5 page set of proposed building elevations entitled “Renovation and Repair to the Ahearn Building” prepared by Heike Schneider, Architect, latest revision dated June 20, 2018 and a landscape plan entitled “Proposed Site Plan Alterations” prepared by Sherwood & Truitt, LLC latest revision dated June 24, 2018.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let’s talk about the site inspection first and then we’ll get to the rest of the business. People were there on Sunday. Does the board have comments?
Mr. Robert Foley responded we looked at the wetlands, beyond there that had over the many years that had deteriorated. We heard from the applicant how he removed it and cleaned it up. My concern in that area would be the small retaining wall that you mentioned at the site visit that would have to be put there at the edge of the macadam. I guess that would be east and how that is done. I know you probably have to put it there. Then the other issue was on the northern where you have the gravel coming out from one of the garage doorways. Maybe someone else can address that better how prudent that would be. I’m not sure. Then we also went over trees and stuff which some of the other board members can address. My only other concern was, again, it’s incidental but the sign for the upcoming public hearing a better placement.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that orange sign is just a notification of the application. It’s not even required by code. The public hearing sign has different rules and they’re not at a public hearing yet.

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s still to happen. Thank you.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one thing with the site inspection though is the three garage doors, I think what you’re getting at is the garage door that there’s only access by going right by the wetland around the back of the building. I think some of the members wanted an explanation of why that was needed, that third garage door. You don’t have to answer now, unless the board has any other comments.
Mr. Keith Betensky stated we’re happy to address that when the time comes, thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anyone else who has a question or comment based on your site visit?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder responded we still need to do a tree survey but we’ll have that for the next meeting.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated this isn’t one of the first applications where they had to prefund and escrow account so we have the money. They submitted information and we have to retain our arborist to go out. I do think though from that same pot of money we do need someone to get out to – Paul Jaehnig has delineated the wetlands so I suppose he can also comment on the plantings in the wetland although I don’t know because that’s not really something our arborist comments on but we do need to get consultants out for that as well.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated that’s something I believe Paul can address with staff. If he feels uncomfortable we would hire a different consultant to take a look at it.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and this study would include any creatures in the wetland, frogs and everything? It’s all included. Biodiversity…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we may need, and they’ve already prefunded the account but Jaehnig delineates wetlands and can tell a little bit about them. We don’t typically use him to give us a biodiversity or habitat analysis. He can comment on their planting plan but then the arborist actually comments on the trees that they’re proposing to remove. So we have to get some of them out there but this was mentioned there’s plenty of time before the August public hearing.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated this is also a preexisting site. I think the majority of the concern was the additional disturbance that was created behind the building and that wouldn’t be necessary in order to create that third entrance or to access the third entrance and whether or not that’s absolutely needed. Whether or not to do a full biodiversity analysis for the remainder of the site may not be so prudent since it was a preexisting disturbed site.

Mr. Robert Foley stated there was also the future use of further back, the garage area, we were asked about – we know about the hardware store and so forth. We were concerned about whether it would end up being a contractor’s warehouse I guess is what I’m talking about. Was that accurate? I remember there was discussion on that.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated I think there was discussion at the site about what would be stored in warehouse side and currently would say that those just be things that would be offered for sale in the hardware store. I’m concerned or just interested to know whether, and again this doesn’t have to be answered now, given the proximity of the storage area to the wetlands whether things that could potentially be proned to spill, or need clean up, or leak, or anything like that. We’re just a few feet from the wetlands when you get to the wall of that storage facility.

Ms. Heike Schneider stated may I address the question really quickly.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you have to speak into the mike and introduce yourself.

Ms. Heike Schneider stated I’m the architect for 3120 Lexington Avenue. It’s hardware is already submitted preliminary draft for the store layout but also for the storage building. They do need the storage building. It is part of the overall layout and their concept so it will not be anything apart from their storage.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it won’t evolve into a contract, aside from the hardware store…

Mr. Keith Betensky stated thank you, and we appreciate the board’s concerns. Given the past history of this site, we understand why the board might be concerned because prior owners did use the portion of the property behind the building to store roofing shingles and plywood stacks and things like that. This owner has no interest in doing that, and in fact, on the site plan it indicates that behind the building, the existing paved area is going to be restored to a natural condition. I think there are plantings that are going in there. All the storage that’s being proposed for the Ace Hardware store is going to be inside the warehouse structure and the warehouse structure is not going to be open to the public in the sense that it’s going to be for dry storage. It’s solely for the purpose of serving the hardware store in the front. There’s going to be the Ace Hardware store in the front and the warehouse behind it. To answer your question regarding what’s going to be stored in there, it’s going to be materials for the hardware store and also some small equipment like a forklift, a lawn mower, things that are necessary for regular site maintenance but nothing substantial and certainly the use will be a lot less intense than it was in the past.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but it will all be under the Ace Hardware Incorporated? They have a good reputation and everything else. It won’t expand to anything else, that’s what our concern was.

Mr. Keith Betensky stated the proposed use is a hardware store with a warehouse that’s serving the hardware store not a contractor’s yard, and the proposed use is permitted as of right in the district and no variances are necessary. We do need a wetland permit because they’re existing wetlands on the property. We’ve already applied to the DEC because the wetlands behind the property connect up with the Mohegan Lake wetland. That application is pending. And I can certainly answer any of the other concerns unless the board has other questions.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated one more thing from the site visit, we talked a little bit about the potential for an outdoor display of products whether it’s lawn mowers or grills and whether or not you’d want to think about including that in the proposal at this point. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we have a section of the code that does permit outdoor storage. Our assumption is there will be outdoor storage not that the Planning Board wants it but it happens so you should analyze whether you want to do it and then the plan should be revised. Once again, the Planning Board may not approve it but you could show – and it’s a percentage, so you could show a small percentage area for seasonal display of a grill or something like that. Or you can say you’re not going to do it.

Mr. Keith Betensky stated understood. I’ll ask, thank you.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we want to schedule a public hearing for August 28th.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Keith Betensky stated thank you. We would ask that if the board is inclined to vote in August that it direct its staff now to prepare a resolution so the board is in a position to vote in August.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated if you asking to do it that doesn’t mean we’re going to approve it.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the next meeting is early September isn’t it?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no August 28th.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated no the one after that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded October 2nd. We can have one prepared.

Mr. Keith Betensky stated thank you for your time.
PB 2018-6 c.
Application of The Sentinel at Mohegan Lake, LLC, for the property of the Mohegan Group, LLC c/o Adult Care Management, for Site Development Plan approval and a Parking Special Permit for the renovation and expansion of 38 beds and 29,386 sq. ft. to an existing 62,805 sq. ft., 150 bed assisted living facility located at 3441 Lexington Avenue as shown on a 5 page set of drawings entitled “Proposed Renovation and Addition, The Sentinel of Mohegan Lake” prepared by Schopfer Architects, LLP latest revision dated June 27, 2018 and on a 9 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan for the Sentinel of Mohegan Lake” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.C., P.C. dated June 27, 2018.

Mr. Daniel Richmond stated good evening Madame Chair.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated good evening. We’re going to discuss the site visit there at The Sentinel, or actually the Mohegan Manor. It’s still Mohegan Manor.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the old Mohegan Park. The site visit, and anyone else can weigh in, I guess the concern I had brought up at a previous meeting was the queuing distance on northbound Lexington to turn into your entrance. They did a quick action, or you guys did of bringing it further north. And then I wondered at the site visit, Chris was there, whether it was maybe too far north. As I stood there and looked, usually I’m in the car and you don’t have time to look, you’re going too fast, that maybe it doesn’t have to be that far back because I was concerned about that – I guess trees would have to be disturbed and whatever. Maybe that’s something staff and the applicant can work out. I wish there was two ways in and out but there aren’t. It’s a congested intersection. We were there on a Sunday morning so you don’t witness any cars hardly but certain times of the day it’s a very complicated intersection. The waiting for the green arrow, the red arrow, the traffic moving, and then the fact that Route 6 has a longer, Mike you should understand this, a longer run time than the secondary road, in this case Lexington has a wait longer to pass through which is kind of, nothing to do with the applicant, it’s kind of a penalty for the local residents. But it is an intersection that’s going to be problematic. You guys are saying less impact, less car traffic.

Mr. Daniel Richmond stated as we discussed on Sunday. For the record my name is Daniel Richmond a partner with the law firm of Zarin & Steinmetz on behalf of the applicant. With me this evening is Eric Newhouse of Mohegan Sentinel, Dave Schlosser, Schopfer Architects and Jim Annichiarico who you know with Tim Cronin Engineering. Mr. Foley, as we discussed on Sunday, after careful consideration we did as you recognized promptly move the driveway at your suggestion but I think when we were all out there at the site, it became apparent that the original location probably makes the most sense. We also discussed on Sunday this is a project that actually is going to generate little traffic, obviously none of the residents are going to drive to the facility and any driving by staff would be on off hours. It would be unlikely to conflict with the concerns you have about rush hour traffic. But if you’d prefer us to talk about that with staff we’d be happy to engage them.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m still up on whether it stays the way it’s currently shown or whether it’s further up or halfway between. You did mention that on the truck deliveries, we discussed that a little. There wouldn’t be any eighteen wheelers. There wouldn’t be smaller vehicles coming in.

Mr. Daniel Richmond responded generally it would be boxed trucks that would be coming in.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and similar to the previous application, this applicant prefunded an escrow account. There will be several trees that might have to be taken down which have been marked on the site plan. We’ll send that site plan to our arborist to get an estimate. We’ll keep you in the loop on that but you don’t have to give us any more money because we’ll be drawing down from the escrow account. I don’t believe there’s any necessity, wetland consultants, biodiversity consultants. We’re just looking for trees now. I don’t believe as of now there’s any issues with traffic that would necessitate the hiring of a consultant. I think it’s just trees.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated the only other thing I wanted to bring up is, so the area behind the building where it’s sort of a meadow but it’s just overgrown with weeds. We talked about that. I’d like to see a landscape plan something for it because if we’re going to extend the building out that way, it would be nicer to have a place that people can walk, or beautify the area because otherwise it’s just going to be overgrown weeds.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked is that the area behind Brodie’s?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated it’s right straight up I think.

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated it’s to the left Chris. It’s that area right there.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s right.

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated that’s where the previous septic system for the building was. There’s really no trees in that area. It’s just weeds, overgrown.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked but it is going to be opened a little and be more noticeable if some of those trees come down. Because right now it almost doesn’t even look like it’s your property because there’s that line of trees. So I think that’s what you were getting at. 

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated it is segregated.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and the elevations need to be submitted to our Architectural Advisory Committee. They do that relatively informally. I would email them the elevations. They don’t regularly meet and then they get their comments back.

Mr. Daniel Richmond asked so Chris will you be forwarding the elevations to the AARC?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated one thing we talked about at the site visit was just the disposition of the current residents. I understand from a conversation that that’s controlled by state law and both the current owner and the new owners would have to work on some sort of relocation but if you could just help me by pointing me to some description of that process just so I can better understand it.

Mr. Eric Newhouse introduced himself and stated from Kasper Development on behalf of the Sentinel Mohegan Lake. We’re the contract vendee for the property that we’re discussing. Our proposal to convert and expand the existing adult home into a state-of-the-art assisted living facility. There’s a current population living there. I think it’s well known throughout the community that the current resident population has a primarily demographic of suffering from mental health issues. I don’t know that they’re licensed as that type of a facility. I think just over time that’s how it’s been marketed and created.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated so PPHA whatever that stands for, PPHA.

Mr. Eric Newhouse stated I’m not sure what that is. Regardless, in your packets and we submitted to you quite a bit of detail with regard to the current population, the current licensure that we have, the current licensure that’s in place now, currently, and the proposed licensure, and the type of clientele that we would be attracting and the process of attrition and relocating and all that. It’s quite detailed and I encourage you to read that but I’m happy to just generally speak about it. Our intention is to, again, completely rehab this facility and attract a different clientele, primarily by virtue of the fact that we’ll be operating as an assisted living program which has a higher level of care, which has extensive regulations by the state of New York about who we can take, who we can service. Again, this is currently a 150 bed facility. I don’t know what the current census but I would imagine it’s well over a hundred people. Those individuals would need to be, if they’re not eligible to live there, would need to be relocated and that’s a process, and that’s going to take some time to do but we’re prepared to go down – just one more point on that and there are requirements for safe discharge and those are extensive regulations regarding how we can discharge a resident and ensure that they’re not going to become part of your homeless population.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked and the discharge becomes your responsibility?

Mr. Eric Newhouse responded it’s our responsibility and it’s monitored by the Department of Health and the state of New York.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked my question was sort of tangential to that. Are the current residents aware that they’re going to be, most of them anyway, shipped out or discharged? What exactly do you do to get them to where they need to be?

Mr. Eric Newhouse responded as I’ve stated a number of times, I think the process is not instantaneous. It’s a process, but I think the way I would describe is, we are responsible to ensure that these individuals, who, this is their home and has been for a very long time, are fine and adequate replacement facility or other housing, or other family or what not. We are not allowed to keep an individual under our licensure that doesn’t meet the requirements of the licensure that we’re proposing here. That would mean that we would have to work with a whole bunch of agencies to ensure that the individuals currently living there find an adequate home. But again, the individuals have a right to remain there until we can find them an alternative that meets the discharge requirements.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked does the resident have any say in where he wants to go?

Mr. Eric Newhouse responded absolutely, in fact that’s part of the regulations they absolutely – and we would have to provide opportunities, and not just one, many options for them to be able to chose from to be able to do that. And again, it’s not going to happen immediately but it will happen over a couple year period of time.
Mr. Robert Foley asked it sounds like you have your work cut out for you in trying to locate them or if you’re up against any, as you said, they could object or not want to leave and then you may have to deal with an advocacy agency.

Mr. Eric Newhouse stated that’s exactly right.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so it will probably take time. It’s a concern.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked do the new people move in while the other people are moving out?

Mr. Eric Newhouse responded a couple of things, through attrition alone and through the construction project, being that we’re renovating the entire building, there’s going to be a reduction in census immediately and then through attrition and through these other efforts, you’ll see a turn over pretty quickly in the beginning but there’s always going to be a number of, I don’t know what that number is today, but there will be a healthy amount of people that we will take some time to find appropriate housing for.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked but you’ll have new people moving in at the same time?

Mr. Eric Newhouse responded the first 18 months, we anticipate this to be an 18 month construction process, I don’t believe that there will be admissions during that time. At that point, the facility’s already – there’s a significant reduction in census at that point and so that process will begin. So yes, there will be a number of individuals that’s going to remain there…
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked it will be small at that point?

Mr. Eric Newhouse responded it will be small. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so you feel it will be about an 18 month process…
Mr. Eric Newhouse responded to change over the resident population?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder responded yes.

Mr. Eric Newhouse responded no, I think it will be longer than that.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated no I meant about the construction.

Mr. Eric Newhouse responded 18 months, something like that. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked one other that came up the sidewalks, at least in front. Is it on your site plan? Like from the corner of 6 to the end of your property on Lexington?

Mr. Eric Newhouse responded there are no sidewalks proposed. Currently there are no sidewalks. There are no sidewalks proposed, there are no sidewalks currently, besides that walkway that identified there which goes up from the property up to the road. That’s my personal preference, living in the suburbs, I’m not a big fan of sidewalks on busy streets.

Mr. Robert Foley stated years ago when we moved here we didn’t want sidewalks but the reason I ask, there is the ramp going up, there’s the bus stop there. I thought there was a little of a sidewalk where the bus stop and the bench is. What I’m wondering is, would it be prudent to maybe have an expansion of that sidewalk across the front of your property on Lexington maybe down towards the driveway coming in?

Mr. Eric Newhouse responded I think it’s important to note that based on the type of facility that we’re going to be building we aren’t going to have residents that are going to be using the transportation systems. Our residents are going to be using our own private vehicles that we transport individuals with so I don’t think our residents – I know the current population probably does use the public…

Mr. Robert Foley stated other people who live nearby use the road whether it’s going north – and it is dangerous. It is Lexington. I don’t know whether it’s a – I think I asked at the site visit…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we can ask our Highway Superintendent his opinions about sidewalks. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated there is on the Cortlandt Boulevard side that’s at the intersection of Lexington and Route 6. It would be helpful and beneficial to kind of clean up and address that area in the landscape plan to kind of clean that area up. It’s at the top right hand corner of – at the intersection of Lexington and where Chris is moving the cursor. There’s the Cortlandt Boulevard. It’s the entrance sign to the town to let residents know they’re on Cortlandt Boulevard, Town of Cortlandt. It would be beneficial, as I stated, to dress up that area within the landscape plan, clean up the weeds, open it up a little bit, potentially create a little bit of a walkability to the crosswalk as that crosswalk does see a lot of action up and down towards Lake Mohegan.

Mr. Eric Newhouse stated I don’t see any issue with that.

Mr. Ben Truitt asked just a quick question, when you say dressing it up, basically going onto the municipal property and you’re talking about the walkway portion of it?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded just clean up the area within the Cortlandt Boulevard sign, freshen up the plantings, get rid of the weeds overgrowth, etc.

Mr. Ben Truitt responded the green space between that walkway and the parking actually has, we’ve shown it to be cleaned up and basically with new plantings…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I’m saying behind it, maybe open it up a little bit to make the sign a little more visible. We can talk about it with a quick visit to the site.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated Madame Chair I was going to move that we schedule a public hearing for the 20th of August at our next meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 
PB 6-15      d.
Application of Hudson Ridge Wellness Center, Inc. for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit to reuse the seven existing buildings located at the former Hudson Institute property to provide a 92 bed private residential treatment program for individuals who are recovering from chemical dependency on a 20.83 acre property located at 2016 Quaker Ridge Road as shown on a 7 page set of drawings entitled “Hudson Ridge Wellness Center” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated May 16, 2018. (see prior PB 49-86)

Mr. Bob Davis stated good evening. Thank you. I’m Bob Davis for the applicant. With me tonight is one of our hydrogeologists Karen DeStefanos. Mercifully I think we have one of the easier ones tonight as hard as that is to believe. We’re here tonight really for a very limited purpose of seeking the board’s authorization to commence our well pump test plan which is you know has been reviewed at length and revised over some months with the town’s consultant Mr. Canavan. We do regarding consideration for the comments of the neighbor’s consultant. At the last meeting you’ll recall that the board authorized us subject to staff comment which we received, to go ahead with our letter inviting neighbors within a 1,500 foot radius to participate in the pump test and at the staff’s request we also included some neighbors outside of that radius, and ultimately we sent out approximately 66 invitations by both regular and certified mail by June 20th. We sent out another one or two thereafter, and thus far we’re pleased to say we’ve received 17 positive responses. While we only needed a minimum of 10 under the accepted protocol to proceed, we do have good spatial coverage now and we are ready to proceed to test all 17 depending of course upon accessibility and up to a maximum of 20 which is really unheard of in my knowledge for these types of tests which normally test around 6 homes or something in that neighborhood. We seek your approval tonight to go forward only with that testing. Just a couple of quick points of clarification in light of some recent public comment in the press on well related matters. It’s important to note that our pre-approval pump test, which doesn’t commit the board to anything with the application, is intended to assist the board in its environmental review and our well monitoring plan which will implement, should the board grant approval, those have both been voluntarily and cooperatively proposed by the applicant as part of its application. Neither has been imposed upon the applicant. And it should just be noted in general that the pump test will be conducted at a rate which is more than twice the average projected water demand of the hospital at full capacity, and also will take place continuously for 72 straight hours which of course won’t occur during normal usage. It will also be without regard to the fact that the applicant will have a water storage tank, not the fire tank but a different tank which will further mitigate the actual demand on the well. It’s an extremely conservative testing protocol and it’s been reviewed and vetted by your town’s consultant. We’ve also fully responded to a submission which was just made yesterday by the neighbor’s council along with an earlier one that was apparently submitted in April that we didn’t get a copy of until yesterday. And you have copies today of our comprehensive response. We have invited all 9 neighbors which council requested be included in the pump test and we’ve already received 5 positive responses from those folks. We’ve really tried to bend over backwards to be accommodating with this test really going beyond the pale and what would normally be required. In short tonight, we’d ask the board to simply authorize us to go forward with the testing during this drier portion of the year when the results will be more meaningful. I know at the work session the board, it was requested by the neighbor’s council as was in their letter to extend the response period until July 31st. We had already, in our submission today indicated we’ve responded, we had extended it to June 20th. We would again respectfully submit that that should more than suffice to give people a month to respond. This would make it nearly a month and a half notwithstanding that if the board is so inclined to grant that, we would assume that it would be okay to go ahead with evaluating simply the accessibility of the 17 people who have already granted permission because we would need to know that information in consultation with Mr. Canavan to evaluate which wells are susceptible and appropriate for testing and that way by August 1st if we have a few more people those would be the only ones we would have to assess and we could then go forward in August with the testing. We also have to be able to set up our well company to be available at that time. We really want to get this done by Labor Day. It will take a while to get the results, maybe four to six weeks as I understand it. So that’s basically the only reason we’re here before the board tonight so that we can move forward on that basis.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we also discussed at the work session the role that our consultant, Mr. Canavan would play in working with your hydrogeologist. Can you just go over that?

Mr. Bob Davis responded they have a very good working relationship already. They’re in regular contact as we’ve worked out the protocol for the plan and the notice procedure, well monitoring after approval if there is one and so forth. We’re amenable to whatever is felt to be reasonable on the part of the town to having Mr. Canavan on site whenever’s appropriate to basically monitor the testing, because ultimately he’s the one who will be evaluating the results on behalf of the board.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so you have 17 right now positive responses?

Mr. Bob Davis responded correct.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and you don’t want to extend the acceptance period any longer? Is that your position?

Mr. Bob Davis responded our position is that it’s unnecessary because we already have more people than is necessary, that’s contingent on the accessibility of all of those wells. We were looking initially, felt that 10 was sufficient. We have 17 so we are prepared, voluntarily, to go forward with all of those assuming they’re accessible and even to extend it to 20. We’ve always been amenable to receiving some late responses. We had to set some deadline because you can’t make it infinite and have someone show up 6 months from now. We have proposed, in accordance with the comments of people by way of their council, we had extended it already essentially from a month to June 20th.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you want to set a deadline or 20 whichever comes first?

Mr. Tom Wood asked I thought it was going to be July 31st?

Mr. Bob Davis responded we can do that as well.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked you meant July 20th that you’d extend it to, right?

Mr. Bob Davis responded did I say June? I’m sorry, I misspoke, yes July 20th.

Mr. Robert Foley asked July 31st or 20th?

Mr. Bob Davis responded we had already extended it to July 20th.

Mr. Tom Wood stated we discussed at the work session that are going to July 31st and so my understanding was that the board would be asked to approve to July 10th, 2018 protocol subject to verification of our expert that that is what it is. Secondly, that consents can be sent in until July 31st. It’s my understanding then that our consultant and the applicant’s consultant would look at who has consented within those radiuses and chose the 20 wells that would be appropriate to test because it’s been explained to us that if two properties are next to each other, their wells are close it may not make sense to monitor those.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked suppose they’re at 17 if the number doesn’t increase and we find that there are two wells that are adjacent to one another, do we do the 17 or do we tell somebody that they’re out?

Mr. Bob Davis responded I think it’s going to be up to your consultant to evaluate that with our consultant. We have indicated that regardless of how they’re located we would do the 17.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it just seems a little disingenuous to invite somebody to go in and then come back and say, “sorry, you’re too close to this guy’s well so we’re…”

Mr. Bob Davis stated it’s not disingenuous because, again, we’ve never promised that every person who wants to be tested would be tested…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked we did not?

Mr. Bob Davis responded no. The idea is to demonstrate what the impact of our project is on wells and there’s no necessity. Mr. Canavan can speak to this but it’s been pointed out that there’s no necessity of doing two wells next to each other.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked are you doing that?
Mr. Bob Davis stated notwithstanding that we would test up to 20.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so you don’t think there was an expectation on the part of the people that got the letters if they’d opted in they’d automatically be in?

Mr. Bob Davis responded I can’t speak to their expectation. I can only speak…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but did the letter…

Mr. Tom Wood stated I think our consultant could answer that.

Mr. Bob Davis stated we made no promise that everyone would participate in it.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated although that is in fact true, given the controversial nature of this, it might behoove you to test everyone who wants to be tested just so no one feels like if they had been included…

Mr. Bob Davis stated well again, we volunteered to do at least up to 20. We have 17 responses as we sit here today from June 20th so we don’t anticipate that there’ll be a large number of additional people. It’s a fairly moot point. We’ve agreed to do 20. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we’ll see what comes in.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated our consultant Bill Canavan will fill in and summarize what was discussed previously and at the work session, his role moving forward in selecting up to the 20 some odd properties. We recommend staff, I would at least, that the 17 that have responded they would be tested and monitored. If a few other stragglers come in that increases the number over 20 that’s when we would entertain whether or not there are two houses side-by-side and whether or not to remove them from the proposed monitoring, but Bill will summarize the results of the protocol, next steps, and the selection process of the 20 some odd parcels.

Mr. Bill Canavan stated so the first thing is, the map Chris has up there, Chris that’s an earlier dated map which is fine, I just want to point it out. I received the map today and it has…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the board members have all the most up-to-date ones.

Mr. Bill Canavan stated it has the 17 wells and one of them is highlighted in pink, number 49, that was a verbal consent. So there’s a lot more coverage around this site. Another thing, I’m sitting there in my chair looking at it, on the pump test plan there’s a figure, figure 3 and that was a figure from a while back which we discussed and asked the applicant’s hydrogeology group to produce and they did and what it shows is the site, the two proposed pumping wells, and the regional geological features like delinimants and the fracture traces on that map. The reason I want to point this out to the board and to the town engineer and planner is that if you look at the way the geology’s going on this map, it’s kind of going – there’s a big trend north, east, south, west, multiple fractures, regional features and then there’s also some that are trending almost east, west. So then if you look at this map, the green dots kind of coincide a lot with that geology you see. That’s the kind of thing we want to see because if my well and the town engineer’s well are on the same fracture trace, and I start pumping a hundred gallons a minute, the odds are we’re going to be hydraulically connected and we’re going to draw his well down. That’s a good thing on this map that you see. Another thing I’ll point out about this map, in the text of I believe the well monitoring protocol, the citizen’s group, hydro group, they pointed out there was 8 folks in the area that were complaining about drop in pressure. They’re hatchet in like a red pattern on that map. The text says there’s 5 of 8 have agreed but actually there’s only 4 unless I’m missing one. So there’s 4 that are highlighted in green that are also stating they have water pressure problems. I just want to make sure that’s clarified in the text, that’s important. Another thing that I noticed was we have to decide exactly what we’re doing monitoring before, but we know what we’re doing during and after the test. So it states that one location they’re going to do a week of monitoring another three days. So I’ve done a million of these tests as have they, typically it’s three days before, three days during, three days after. I have no problem with a week if that’s what they want to do. A little more data is fine but if we’re going to decide on this today, we just need when the final document comes out we just need to make sure it’s consistent. Let’s see what else. To some of the board member’s point about the off-site well monitoring program, typically what you do, and I’m pretty sure they did it because I read some of the letters. You write a letter and you say, “dear property owner ‘A’ we’re running a water supply test. As part of the test we want to measure some surrounding wells to see if we’re going to draw down their well when we pump water.” And it says, “if your well’s suitable and scientifically we think it’s an important direction or depth then we would want to put a pressure transducer in your well and monitor it.” So it’s not just like everybody in the neighborhood gets their well monitored. It’s never been that way nor is it the intent of the off-site monitoring program. In this case, the things that are going on that for positive, there are 4 of 8 that have said their pressure problems that are on the monitoring program. Maybe someone else is going to sign on, I don’t know. You guys sent out notices. Zarin & Steinmetz and Langan and they wrote a letter stating, hey by the way, send it to these people and they did and I think 4 signed on right, 5 of those 8?
Mr. David Steinmetz responded 5 signed on and there were 4 more than want on.

Mr. Bill Canavan stated so there’s 4 more that want on. Let’s say they send their approvals Friday or Monday. So we’re going to get together and look at them on the map and I’m going to say, “you know what, so we do 21 wells, or this is ridiculous because these two guys are 50 feet apart and they’re on the same fracture trace. It’s a waste of time and money, let’s not do it.” So that’s how it’s going to work. I just want everybody to understand that’s how we do it.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked can I just ask a question? Is it possible that we could do it differently and just let everyone who wants to be tested get tested?

Mr. Bill Canavan responded is it possible? It’s possible yes but it’s not what I would recommend. It’s not what we would typically do.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated I understand that.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked if two people are next to one another and they’re on what you call the fracture trace…

Mr. Bill Canavan asked do you have that map Chris?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I don’t, I’m sorry.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked my question is, what if they have different depths of wells, wouldn’t  that make a difference?

Mr. Bill Canavan responded yes. It does make a difference because if my well is 80 feet and your well is 400 feet and you start pumping 200 gallons a minute and I only have 60 feet of available draw on my well…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so why would you then exclude someone…

Mr. Bill Canavan responded we wouldn’t. We’re weighing that. So you send out a well questionnaire. Say “dear Ms. Jones, please fill out the questionnaire.” When you get 20 of them back, half the people don’t even know where there is located, in the front or rear yard.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated or how deep they are.

Mr. Bill Canavan stated yes, so we’re dealing with that too. Some people know everything, “oh, I just had my pump changed.”

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so there were different well depths next to one another, you would not exclude them?

Mr. Bill Canavan responded we definitely do that analysis.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that’s the question, okay.

Mr. Bill Canavan stated so then there were one or two other things. I just want to make sure we’re all on the same page. One thing we should do also, and I’m sorry I didn’t ask them to do it, we could have had it for tonight, but we probably want to do on the final document, we make a final decision on this, overlay this fracture trace on the pump test plan on this off-site well monitoring program. You’re going to be amazed how well it matches up the regional geological features to the wells that are on the program. And that’s going to be useful just so everybody can see it. We feel comfortable with the program. One other thing we should talk about is the timing because the applicant stated, I think the reason they’re inquiring of the board is there’s a lot of leg work to do and we want to get this test run in August or September which is the ideal time to run it given rainfall and that kind of thing. Even if there’s a couple of outliers, like those 3 or 4 we just talked about, giving them the go-ahead to proceed would be a good thing to do because then they’ll get things lined up, maybe there’s well or a pit you can’t get to. We have to look for another well to allows us time to really get it airtight, get them start to be monitored and they can set up to run the test. 

Mr. David Steinmetz asked Mr. Canavan is there going to be determination that the wells must be in the front of the property to test?

Mr. Bill Canavan responded no, let’s talk about that. That’s a good question. When we canvas a neighborhood and we send out these mailers, you see a house like mine, it was built in 1937, my well’s in a pit. It’s really annoying to access. So you’ve got to dig it up, move the concrete cover off, pull the four bolts off, pull it off the well head. And if it’s a critical well, you do it, but if it’s my well’s here and my neighbor’s is here and theirs is casing above grade, then it’s so much easier to take my neighbor’s well. Just pull the well cap off, pull the wires out, drop the transducer in. The front and rear yard, I don’t know where that came from because that’s never an issue at all. That’s not an issue. And if you’ve never seen this done, it’s a cable on a wheel, 400-500 foot cable that’s attached to a pressure transducer. It’s like 12-14 inches long, ½ inch in diameter, stainless steel. You drop it in the well and then you plug it into your laptop and you use the software that comes with the data logger. You measure the static water level of the well. You write it down and then you set the transducer and it typically collects readings, in this case, probably every 30 minutes for the off-site wells and like ever minute when you’re pumping.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked over 72 hours it’s going to do that.

Mr. Bill Canavan responded onsite there’s going to be transducers going every minute but off-site because they’re doing it for really like 20 days, or something like that, 14 days, it’ll probably be every 30 minutes, something like that. They have a limited memory but they collect a lot of data.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so what’s the 72 hours versus the 20 days?

Mr. Bill Canavan responded so the 72 hours is pumping, those are the two onsite wells and then the three days before, three days during, and the three days after, if that’s what we’re going to decide on, that’s the nine days of monitoring offsite with the data logs, as well as on site. There’ll be data logs on site too.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked so you’ll attend these tests?

Mr. Bill Canavan responded yes, so there’s been a lot of debate among three consultants about what we’re going to do and so on. I would propose something like we’re there for the startup of the monitoring program, we spot check them. Personally I don’t think we need to be at all 17 or 20 whatever we decide on, then when the test starts we’re there four hours, five hours, make sure everything’s going right. Maybe spot check it once in the middle of the day and then at the end of the test we’re there 30 minutes or an hour before shut down, an hour after shut down. We can split data so the days we’re out there we can actually, “ah you know what? Let’s go check Mrs. Jones’ well.” We’ll get that data ourselves and then we’ll go to one or two other wells and get that data and we can plot our own hydrographs and the applicant will send us all their data. We’ll distribute it. I think the request on the record is that the citizen’s group wants it as well right?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes.

Mr. Bill Canavan stated so that’s easy because I just send the spreadsheets to Lang and then we will look at our hydrographs and we’ll compare. This way there’s no mistrust. It’s transparent I guess is what I’m trying to say.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so in layperson’s terms, what exactly will the data show?

Mr. Bill Canavan responded it’s basically going to do the following: you put the transducer in, you say collect readings every 30 minutes on an offsite well. On an onsite well we put it in, we say, collect readings every minute. When we start pumping it’s going to show a draw – as soon as the pump goes on the pumping well is going to drop. The offsite wells, all of them, people are going to be showering, and using their dishwasher, whatever. There’s going to be fluctuations. We’re going to see them. But in that window of three days, we’re going to see if it’s going like this the whole time, up and down, and it’s kind of just straight across, it’s just you and me using our well every day. But if it’s going like this and the pumping starts and it starts going down like that, then you still might have a problem. The one thing we should all keep in mind, if you’re pumping your well and my well drops three feet, and my well’s 400 feet deep, it’s not that big a deal. Like I said earlier, my well is 80 feet and it dropped 60 feet that could be a big deal. So that’s with the offsite versus the onsite monitoring is going to tell us.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and right now you don’t know how deep everyone’s well that you’re testing?

Mr. Bill Canavan responded well, does that table say – I think the answer’s no that we don’t know everybody’s depths. What percentage of the wells do you think we know depth? So about 40% of the wells, we know depth. Everybody in this room knows how deep their well is raise their hand? Do you know? I mean I’m a hydrogeologist, I didn’t know my well until the pump went last week, because I never changed the pump. It was the same pump for like 20 years. But a lot of people do know. If you have a newer home, you know your well depth because they drill the well for you. Anybody have any other questions?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I don’t think so.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we…

Mr. Bill Canavan stated can I say one more thing. Sorry, it’s late I know but I just want to say one last thing. It says in the well monitoring port if you can’t – I want to make sure they’re committing to this because it’s not easy to do. So we go to a house, you can’t get a transducer down there. They state they’ll measure the well manually. Over 9 days, that’s really tough to do. Right? So my feeling is that I don’t think we’re going to have that problem but if we do then plan ‘B’ can be like, hopefully there’s a well right over there that we can do.  That will be part of the evaluation but if you have to measure it manually you get enough reading it’s like four, five, six times a day or more and it can get really labor intensive.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what would cause you to have to do that manually?

Mr. Bill Canavan responded sometimes a transducer won’t go down a well, you can’t get it in the well, or the well head’s sealed and I’m only allowed access to a really small probe. So that happens every now and then. I mean, 25 years ago we used to run around with M scopes like rabbits measuring wells and there was no data loggers, so now it’s so much easier to do, you get much better data. I just want everybody to understand that if that’s the case, and it’s a critical well, you’re going to have to have someone out there for a long time. We’ll decide on that. Hopefully we don’t encounter that, but we’ll decide on frequency of monitoring where it’s a well where a data logger can’t be placed in it. That’s it. That’s all I have.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we approve the protocol which is listed in July 10th document and extend the deadline on the 31st.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I just want to note subject to the following recommendations and changes that Bill had outlined which would be the extension to July 31st. The confirmation that we’re going to be testing three days before, the three day duration, then three days after the well draw down and also Bill would like an update to a new figure of showing the overlay of the trace and geological features onto the well monitoring plan and the map showing the locations of the parcels and the location of the two wells.

Mr. Bill Canavan stated and then the last thing I’ll say is if my wife didn’t hate air conditioning, this is how I keep my bedroom.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s how we stay awake.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I was just going to say one other thing, is the goal to 20 people right?

Mr. Bob Davis responded well we said that we agreed to do up to 20.

Seconded.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is all regarding the protocol itself.

Mr. Peter Daly stated that’s all we’re approving.

With all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Bob Davis stated thank you.


*



*



*
NEW BUSINESS:

PB 2018-11 a.
Application of Andi Gamboa, for the property of Lordae Property Management, for a change of use from a personal services facility to an insurance office, located at 2141 Crompond Road (Toddville Plaza) as described in a letter from Andi Gamboa dated June 20, 2018 (see prior PB 18).

Mr. Andi Gamboa introduced himself and stated I just wanted to ask for a change of use. I’m already in the place but the landlord never changed the use. It used to be an efficiency training gym. What I’m going to be doing there now is selling insurance; property and casualty under Farmer’s Insurance. I wanted to ask for a change of use. What I’m going to have is two employees: one part-time, one full time. Hours of operation are going to be 9:00 to 6:00 Monday through Friday. I think that’s about it.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and you know more about planning now than you thought you would know about.

Mr. Andi Gamboa stated yes, I learned a lot.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair, I move that we approve Resolution 24-18 in favor of this change of use.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated good luck.

Mr. Andi Gamboa stated thank you very much.
PB 2018-17 b.
Application of Lisa Leardi Lake for Planning Board approval of a change of use from a retail use to a personal services facility, a Yoga Studio, and a retail store in two existing tenant spaces located at Pike Plaza, 2050 E. Main Street, as described in a letter and packet dated June 21, 2018 (see prior PB’s 30-95, 14-96, 14-07).

Ms. Lisa Leardi Lake stated good evening. Can you hear me?
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated we can.

Ms. Lisa Leardi Lake hello Madame Chair and Planning Board. This was an interesting meeting. I am applying for change of use. As you can see on the monitor, the building that I am occupying or interested in occupying is the surgical supply, former surgical supply and also H&R Block. There was two entrances there; one of them I would like to put a retail store in and the other one would be a yoga studio. I hold workshops within that studio space as well. My sister and I are both published authors so we run writer’s groups in there as well as yoga.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any questions from anybody?

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we approve Resolution 25-18.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if you’re going to make any interior renovations to the space, make sure you keep in touch with our Building Department. There’s a condition in there that you need to obtain all the necessary permits.

Ms. Lisa Leardi Lake stated absolutely, yes. Thank you so much.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they’ll tell you you need a permit if you’re going to put a sign up as well. I think that’s in the resolution.

Ms. Lisa Leardi Lake stated thank you very much.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated thank you.

PB 2018-12 c.
Application of John Lentini, R.A. on behalf of Dr. Ravi Kumar, for the property of Richard DiLorenzo, for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for an office for a health care practitioner located in an existing building at 2 Ogden Avenue as shown on a drawing entitled “Plot Plan” prepared by John A. Lentini, R.A. May 16, 2018.

Mr. John Lentini stated good evening Madame Chairwoman, and members of the board. Welcome to the board fellow council Cunningham. Cunningham is your name?
Mr. Cunningham responded yes.

Mr. John Lentini stated always seeing new faces. This whole side changes a lot. I’m representing Dr. Ravi Kumar who is a vascular surgeon. I believe he’s going to be the first vascular surgeon to be in Cortlandt, at least he tells me he is. He is relocating from Dobbs Ferry. He’s a contract vendee presently building at 2 Ogden on the corner of Crompond which is 500 feet from the Presbyterian Hudson Valley Hospital. He wants to be associated with the hospital. I believe they want to be associated with him. This is a transitional use. The lot is an R-10 zone and as an R-10 zone the lot complies but in order to take advantage of the transitional use under section 307.60 there are extensive or larger requirements for yards and usage. The use itself is permitted with a special permit which is primarily why I’m here. However, it appears I’ll need a variance which I tried to get initially by filing with Code Enforcement. I think things have changed here. In the past I would have gone to the variance board first but I believe I’m requesting a referral to a variance board and at the same time perhaps a public hearing.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s a little ahead. We need to do a review memo and then once you come back to the board to discuss the review memo, the review memo will list all – you know all the variances you need but I’ll list them all for the board and then at that next meeting or whenever that time is, they may refer you over to the Zoning Board so you can run on a concurrent path.
Mr. John Lentini asked there’s no way of doing that ahead of time? Because we’ve already extensively went over this with Code Enforcement which was normally what I did. So we have buttoned down exactly what we need.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think you need to do a little more in front of the Planning Board before you go to the Zoning Board. 

Mr. George Kimmerling stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff.

Seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, I know it’s late, in the review memo I know the street and the house, is there parking? In the street?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, it’s been a real estate office for years so on the plan I believe your parking lot drawing is fairly representative of – it’s a double wide driveway as it is now. 

Mr. John Lentini stated it is but it’s an elevation challenge and I understand the town has initiated a new code for handicap spaces that they have to be 18 feet wide.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but the point being it’s not a normal house driveway because it’s been served as a real estate office for years.

Mr. Robert Foley stated there’s a parking lot.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated a very wide driveway which John has designed into a parking lot which would hold…

Mr. John Lentini stated I only added the stripes for an ADA space but there’s public transportation as well.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on another topic, the hospital transition zone, is that because it’s across from where the MOD’s being proposed.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no, it’s been a special permit since 1994. 

With all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. John Lentini stated thank you.
PB 2018-13 d.
Application of A Rising Star Children’s Center, for the property of the First Hebrew Congregation, for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for a licensed day care center in an existing building located on a 3.7 acre parcel of property at 52 Scenic Drive as shown on a drawing entitled “ARSA, LLC Site Location, Site Plan and Bulk Regulations” prepared by Mark Steven Olson, R.A. dated June 25, 2018.

Mr. Mark Olson introduced himself and stated Olson and Partners Architecture. With us tonight are Gloria and Tom who run A Rising Star Daycare Center. The site plan that you see is an existing site plan. The circular, the circular drive, the drive that goes back around the side of the building are all existing paved surfaces. The only thing that we are adding for the proposed use is we are widening the entry and we are adding the parking spaces which don’t exist. The previous use I guess did not have parking spaces. But the previous recorded use is in fact an assembly space with daycare use, not how the building is presently being used but that was the previous recorded use. We also have a deeded area to the left end there that is being used for a parking lot for the neighbor but it is divided and deeded already. Essentially, we’re looking to utilize it as a daycare facility which is sorely needed in the area. We are looking to put this building back on the tax rolls because it’s currently owned by religious organization so it’s not a taxable property. The building presently is being kind of neglected. There’s some wood rot on the building, there’s overgrown landscaping that needs to be cleaned up. Pavement needs to be topped and re-edged and striped for traffic flow. Incidentally, the circular drive works well for a daycare facility for drop-off. There’s one other area that’s fenced in that is currently a tennis court. That will be re-surfaced and re-purposed for a fenced in playground area. That’s essentially all the improvements that we’re looking to do on this particular property. Being the simplicity of the project we were hoping that we could count on the board to see this as a probably, maybe a type II action as far as SEQRA if you’re going to go through the SEQRA process that may not need further action. Pursuant to the town code’s section 307.65.4 it is in the purview of the Planning Board to in fact approve a licensed daycare facility in this building. The only criteria that we see as not meeting is the existing rear yard setback for daycare. You require 75 foot setbacks all the way around. There’s one setback that is deficient at I believe it’s 50 feet. 
Mr. Michael Preziosi stated plan shows 54.8 feet.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think it’s 54.8.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked versus what, 75?

Mr. Mark Olson responded versus 75. That also backs up to a slope so we’re significantly higher than our neighbors.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked are you in contract to buy this property or do you have it?

Mr. Mark Olson responded we’re contracted.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that back, I’m trying to picture this, this slope that’s there you said – the property runs back and then there’s a slope. 

Mr. Mark Olson responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what do you plan to do with the edging of your property versus that slope that runs down? What are you going to do with that?

Mr. Mark Olson responded leave it alone.

Mr. Tom Vayda stated we’re obviously going to put a fence in. [inaudible] we’re going to have to fence that back area.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated right answer

Mr. Steven Kessler asked why don’t you come up to the microphone and say who you are for the record?

Mr. Tom Vayda introduced himself and stated and this is Gloria Foster, she’s the real boss. We will be fencing that back area off. We may partition a little bit depending on what we decide to do. We have to separate the age groups for play but that whole back area where the cliff is will be fenced off. That’s about it. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what age group are you looking for?

Mr. Tom Vayda responded we currently have a daycare that we’ve been operating out of our home for 14 years and we’ve taken them I think as young as 6 weeks if I’m right and we’re permitted to take them up to 12 years and perhaps beyond in special circumstances. I think the age range we have now is 4 months to 8 years. So we’ll have separate rooms and separate play areas for each of the groups. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff for a review memo.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated as to the applicant’s point, it’s not an extremely complicated case but what I would prefer is that you refer it back, let us do the review memo. They’ll be back on August 28th, hopefully schedule the public hearing for October 2nd with a possible resolution but we would like to use this time to do the review memo because there are a couple of minor things we’d like to analyze. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay, sounds good. 

Mr. Mark Olson asked is there any possibility of combining the next meeting with a public hearing on the matter? Only because our client is really pushing for an early spring…
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but what we’d prefer to do is even if you get a public hearing on August 28th most likely you’re not approved until October 2nd. So what we’re saying is you’re going to be back on – and the Planning Board may want to do a site inspection. I’m not guaranteeing that they want to do that but that’s something that they could do but you’re still going to get approved if all goes well on the same date whether you have a public hearing on August 28th or not, because I don’t think the board is ready to not have a review memo yet, schedule a public hearing, and then possibly approve it in August unless you tell me otherwise.
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated meaning in the meeting after August, the October meeting, we could possibly have a public hearing, close it and the resolution of approval.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I don’t think that’s happening in August.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated no.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated no, I said the one after.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you get to the same place.

Mr. Mark Olson stated just so the board is aware that early spring is a very pivotal time for the business to be accepting new children. In order for us to develop architectural plans, get through improvements, and open the doors, it would be important for us to get an approval as soon as possible.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated as you well know you’re running a concurrent process with the Building Department which there’s complexities about the inside of the building. Obviously Martin is not going to be able to approve things but I think you can work with him while you’re in front of this board.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated one of our comments will be to ask for concept floor plans to see what’s going on and then you can work with myself and Martin on the actual interior fit out as we proceed with this process. 

Mr. Mark Olson stated sounds great. Look forward to it.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated thank you.

Mr. Tom Vayda stated we appreciate all that and if we could be approved in October we’d be more than happy. We’d like to add that it’s important to the community too. Recently, one of the largest facilities, I think it’s really Peekskill, Child World Academy closed suddenly and we literally turned down 10 children in one day. We went to a party the other day, not expecting anything and people were swarming us, giving us their information, begging us to take their children. We can’t. We’re legally constrained because we’re in a small facility. While it’s important to us as business owners, it’s also important to the community because that particular side of Cortlandt is underserved. The Mohegan Lake side has many facilities: Learning Experience, Tom Thumb, Children of America. There’s a lot of facilities there but where we are in the Amberlands/Cortlandt area, we and maybe a couple of other facilities, Montrose and there’s one other facility there. It’s important to the community too but if we can get it done by October, we’d be happy. Thank you.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you very much.
PB 2018-15 e.
 Application of Cortlandt Town Center LLC for Site Development Plan approval for the construction of an approximately 3,725 sq. ft. bank building proposed in the area of the vacant Piazza Roma building located at the Cortlandt Town Center as shown on a 9 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan Application-Cortlandt Town Center-Chase Bank” prepared by Gerhard Schwalbe, P.E. dated June 27, 2018.

Mr. stated good evening Madame Chair, members of the board. Thank you. I know it’s late. I don’t want to take too much of your time but this application’s fairly straightforward. This is the old Piazza Roma building, a 40 year-old building. It’s currently closed right now. It’s located at the Cortlandt Town Center. There’s an aerial Chris I think that was – if you go to the beginning I think it was. That was a different one. I have it on disc if you want it. I had the date on it I think. We can use that. That wasn’t the one I put together because it was a little bigger for that. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked but this is the site?

Mr. Schwalbe responded yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked can you make it bigger?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no.

Mr. Schwalbe asked want me to give you the one I have?

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked how’s that?

Mr. Schwalbe responded I guess we can use that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated let’s just use this one.

Mr. Schwalbe stated so you see the three buildings in the center of the aerial. There’s the Piazza Roma building is the one on the right side. You’ve got Applebee’s in the middle and Pier One on the end and then the entrance drive which is directly opposite the Cortlandt Crossing which is under construction is that driveway to the right. McDonald’s is just to the right of that in that area. The building site is just under 20,000 square feet in terms of its disturbance. Generally, that whole building will be taken down which is currently over 7,000 square feet in size the proposed building is much smaller at 3,725 square feet.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so the whole Piazza Roma will be torn down?

Mr. Schwalbe responded completely torn down and a new building would basically fit within that existing building footprint. The site plan we have – it’s a shame you don’t have the one I gave you.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’ll take your thumb drive if you want. It’s only 11:20 but we’ll…

Mr. Schwalbe I’ve got to say, it is cold in here though. There you go. 
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked this one? I apologize. I think I’ve got this. I don’t know what I did with it.

Mr. Schwalbe stated there’s the site and you can see the access road down the middle of it and Cortlandt Crossing up to the top. Next slide. So that’s the brown building area mass is the Chase building, one-story building. As you can see, we’re keeping the parking lot generally the way it is. There’s no real change there. There’s some additional parking where the cursor is right now, there’s 9 spaces being added there. On the top, they’re being shifted slightly. There’s a loss of some spaces but the end result is going to be a net gain of about 3 spaces altogether. We’re adding some more green area. So there’s actually a 25% increase in, or reduction in the impervious area on the site as a result of this plan because the other restaurant was much larger. We’re maintaining onto the left hand side along that green edge line there’s an existing walkway that the board had coordinated that proposal with the other original development that actually creates a walkway from that end all the way down to the Wal-Mart site and that’s going to remain. That walkway will stay in place adjacent to Applebee’s and we created a more of a greener space between Applebee’s and their driveway. So that driveway is going to service the access for the ATM, drive-up ATM. There will be an initial one installed there and then there’s a future one planned, as they may need it, to connect through, and that’s a one-way driveway going from the interior parking lot down to the mall access road. And we also lined that driveway up to be opposite, the other driveway on the other side of the parking lot, so at least if they have to go through there they can.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is that a new driveway you’re adding for the drive off?

Mr. Schwalbe responded yes, because right there’s no driveway through there. The building was so much larger, it actually extended over in that area right now so we’re cutting that back.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so there’ll be another driveway on the right to contend with when you make the turn from the road, from Route 6 to make a right and head towards…

Mr. Schwalbe responded right. It’s one way out. It’s not two way. There will be signs but you can’t go into so vehicles will go through the main driveway and then if they actually go to the ATM they’ll cut through there.

Mr. Robert Foley asked they can go left or right when they come out of the driveway?

Mr. Schwalbe responded at the moment we’re thinking left or right out of there. It will only be one lane out, not two lanes. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I think you may want to give consideration just make it a right out.

Mr. Schwalbe stated we can look at that. We certainly can. Actually if you go to the right the signal on the other side by Panera is actually better because it’s a full signal there whereas the one at McDonald’s in that area is actually limited right now.

Mr. Robert Foley stated you may want to restrict the left also because of the cars coming around and all of a sudden the guy’s trying to make a left out…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated if you can provide a queuing summary, if Chase can give you the information as to the number of cars they expect in the peak hour and we can make a determination as to whether or not to restrict the left out of the driveway.

Mr. Schwalbe stated I just want to clarify too that this facility will replace the one that’s currently in Acme because there’s a bank branch in that facility right now. So this is going to really replace it. Some of the traffic’s are there is just going to be moved to a different part of the site as well. As you can see there’s landscaping around it that will provide more towards the main access road so you see a lot more green there and then the front entrance actually faces Route 6. Plenty of setback, we’re about 175 feet from the property line which exceeds the minimum building setback line. The architecture was developed by TPG Architecture. Ryan Winchester from TPG is here tonight if there’s any questions but this is similar to the other banks you’ve seen in the area. They’re very complimentary of the type of design that they’ve got for the center. It doesn’t exactly matches the center but it’s complimentary to it. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked so you’ll have a further setback further back than what the existing Piazza Roma building is?

Mr. Schwalbe responded not towards Route 6 but towards the mall…

Mr. Robert Foley stated no on the interior.

Mr. Schwalbe responded yes, to the interior mall.

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s going to be the problem with that new exit coming out. At least they’ll have better visibility.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and that was an unsightly area in the back of Piazza Roma. That’s where their garbage was I believe.

Mr. Schwalbe stated there was a driveway curb cut not that they could go drive in there but that’s where they put out their garbage and everything. It was kind of messy back there. They did some cleaning back there. It wasn’t the best situation. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked so the cars coming around making the right have better visibility because your cars will be coming out of your ATM when you drive up.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I just want to check. Does anybody else have any questions, concerns? 

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff for a review memo.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and you’ll most likely be on the same schedule, hopefully as the other one, for a public hearing and resolution in October because we don’t have a September meeting. That’s two meetings from now.

Mr. Schwalbe asked and the board will circulate for a lead agency notice? 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked do we have other involved agencies?

Mr. Schwalbe responded I don’t know. It’s up to you if you were going to do that. I just want to make sure it was done, if not, it’s fine.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we will do it if it’s necessary.

Mr. Schwalbe stated and one last thing, I just want to let you know that in your application packages there was some information regarding the signage for the proposed project. We’re going to do a little bit more clarification for the board because I think it was a little confusing for the information that we gave you was a lot at one point, some of which doesn’t really apply to you guys, more internal stuff but I think it was helpful to see that and we’ll just make a clarification for the next meeting.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated well you certainly have enough time for the next time to get some updating on that. 

Mr. stated thanks so much, appreciate it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re welcome.
PB 2018-16 f.
Application of Dimovski Architecture, for the property of AT&T Montrose, for Site Plan approval for a proposed 2,500 gallon above ground fuel oil tank to replace an existing underground fuel storage tank located at 7 Trinity Avenue as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Dimovski Architecture, PLLC dated June 25, 2018 and a drawing entitled “Site Plan –Mechanical” prepared by Dahoud Mahmud dated February 27, 2018 (see prior PB 2-97)

Mr. Steve Dimovski good evening Madame Chairman, members of the board. So this is a project for AT&T at 7 Trinity Place. It’s a telephone exchange building that serves the community and other local communities. Provides all the phone service and internet service for the area. Typical of the AT&T facilities, this building needs to be operational 24/7, 365 days a year to provide the phone service necessary for the community. With that, there is a backup generator served currently by an underground double wall fuel tank. About 6 months ago they’re monitoring, someone noticed that there was some pinhole leaks between the double walls. AT&T drained the oil out of the tank. They tested the ground. There was no contamination and the tank’s been empty since then. Their objective is to pull the tank out of the ground and put a new above ground oil tank. AT&T’s corporate policy since about 1990 was not to put in underground fuel tanks anymore just because of the volume and facilities throughout the country that they have. So they’ve been doing above ground tanks all over. There’s some codes and laws restricting where we can put them in the rooms, we don’t want to put them in basements for possible flooding and contamination. This building doesn’t have a basement. The location that we chose is directly above where the existing oil tank is. It goes directly into the generator room which is right adjacent to that tank, the shortest run possible and the most reliable spot for that fuel tank. We’re proposing some arborvitaes 10 foot high to screen the new tank, all around the tank and there is – I don’t know if you had a chance to go out there but there is some trees and other plantings in that area that kind of screen the area as it is. That’s really it. They’d like to get this thing back up and running and I’ll provide the backup fuel necessary to keep the facility going.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think we discussed this, is in the front yard so you’re going to need to go to the Zoning Board or a variance. I think it will be referred back to staff, similar to the other ones we’ll shoot for October but probably after the August meeting you can start your Zoning Board process for their September meeting probably. And they won’t approve it until the Planning Board approves but they’ll work in conjunction.
Mr. Michael Preziosi stated in the interim you can finalize the plans, get your petroleum bulk storage permit with Westchester County and go from there.

Mr. Steve Dimovski asked can you repeat that. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi asked do you make application for your petroleum bulk storage permit?

Mr. Steve Dimovski responded this isn’t a new tank so I don’t know if they – I’m not the engineer.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated they would require a DEC and DOH require it if it’s over 800 gallons.

Mr. Steve Dimovski responded okay. Will that be already in place for the underground tank that they have?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded I would hope so, yes, but it’s a new tank so it’s a new permit. There’s triple wall requirements.

Mr. Steve Dimovski stated I’ll check it out.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated that would be a condition of the resolution anyways to make sure he makes it part of the approvals.

Mr. Steve Dimovski stated understood.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked any other questions, comments?

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion to refer this back.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

*



*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. George Kimmerling stated Madame Chair it’s 11:32 p.m. we’re adjourned. Thank you.


*



*



*
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, AUGUST 28, 2018

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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